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TRIODE ACQUISITIONS UK LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

The directors present their report and the financial statements of Triode Acquisitions UK Limited for the year
ended 30 September 2017.

Business review

The principle activity of the company is an investment and holding company.

The nature of the business has not changed significantly during the year. The directors consider that both the
results for the year and the trading prospects for the future are satisfactory and it is the directors’ intention to
continue to develop the existing business.

Results and dividends

Details of the profit for the year are set out in the Statement of Profit and Loss account and Other
Comprehensive Income on page 8 and the related notes. Turnover of €NIL (20718 €NIL) was achieved in the
year ended 30 September 2017 and the company generated an operating profit of €26k

(2016 €151k) for the year ended 30 September 2017. The net assets of the company total €91.5m (2016:
€79.9m).

The profit for the year, after taxation, amounted to €11.6m (2016: €11.7m).

There were no dividends proposed or paid during the year (20716: €NIL).

Directors® and Secretary's interests

The directors who served during the year were:

J Clohisey (Irish resident)

L Crawford (Irish resident)

J O'Donnell (Irish resident)

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the directors are not required to retire by rotation and accordingly
they will continue in office.

TIL JV Limited indirectly holds 100% of the issued share capital of Triode Acquisitions UK Limited.
L Crawford, J Clohisey and J O'Donnell indirectly hold 20% of the issued share capital of TIL JV Limited.

There has been no contract or arrangement with the company during the year in which a director of the company
was materially interested and which was significant in relation to the company's business.

Political contributions

During the year, the company made no political or charitable contributions that would require disciosure
(2016: €NIL).

Principal risks and uncertainties

The company halds investments in subsidiary companies. As such the directors consider the principal risk to be
the recovery of its investments.
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TRIODE ACQUISITIONS UK LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

Environmental matters

The company will seek to minimise adverse impacts on the environment from its activities, whilst continuing to
address heaith, safety and economic issues. The company has complied with all applicable legislation and
regulations.

Disclosure of information to auditor

Each of the persons who are directors at the time when this Directors’ Report is approved has confirmed that:

. so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditor is
unaware, and
. the director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to be aware of any

relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditor is aware of that information.
Post balance sheet events

No significant events occurred since the balance sheet date which would require adjustment to or disclosure in
the financial statements.

Exemption to preparation of strategic report

In preparing this report, the directors have taken advantage of the small companies exemptions provided by
section 415A of the Companies Act 2006.

The company has availed of the exemption available under Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and
Directors's report) Regulation 2014 from implementing the strategic report requirements as the company
qualifies as a small company for Company Law purposes.

Auditor

The auditor, KPMG, will be proposed for reappointment in accordance with section 487 of the Companies Act
20086.

This report was approved by the board and signed on its behalf.

........................

Date: 14 November 2017
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TRIODE ACQUISITIONS UK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE DIRECTORS' REPORT AND
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' report and the financial statements of Triode
Acquisitions UK Limited in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements of Triode Acquisitions UK Limited for each
financial year. Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements of Triode
Acquisitions UK Limited in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements of Triode Acquisitions UK Limited
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit
or loss of the company for that period.

in preparing these financial statements of Triode Acquisitions UK Limited, the directors are required to;

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and 1o enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements and other informaticn inciuded in Directors' Reports may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.
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KPMG
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St. Stephen's Green
Dublin 2

D02 DEO3

Ireland

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TRIODE ACQUISITIONS UK
LIMITED

1 Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements (“financial statements”) of Triode Acquisitions UK Limited for the year
ended 30 September 2017 which comprise the statement of profit and loss account and other comprehensive
income, the balance sheet, the statement of changes in equity and the related notes, including the summary of
significant accounting policies set out in note 1. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is UK law and FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial pesition of the Company as at 30
September 2017 and of its profit for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework; and

. have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 20086.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ISAs {UK) and applicable iaw.
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial statements in UK, including the Financial Reporting
Council (FRCY's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISA 570 (UK) ‘Going concern’
requires us to report to you where:

. the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate: or

. the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when which the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Other information

The directors are responsible for preparation of other information accompanying the financial statements. The
other information comprises the information included in the directars’ report, other than the financial statements

and cur auditor's report thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF TRIODE ACQUISITIONS UK
LIMITED

Other information (continued)

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion on that information.

In connecticn with our audit of the financial statements, ISAs (UK) and the Companies Act 2006 require that we
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether that information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained from our audit work, or otherwise appears io be materially
misstated.

Based solely on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, we report that

. we have not identified material misstatements in the directors' report or other accompanying information;
. in our opinion, the information given in the directors' report is consistent with the financial statements;
. in our opinion, the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

The directors were not entilted to take advantage of the small companies exemption from the
requirement to prepare a Strategic Report.

* & & @

We have nothing to repoert in regard to these matters.

2 Respective responsibilities and restrictions on use

Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 4, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS CF TRIODE ACQUISITIONS UK
LIMITED

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that inciudes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered materiat if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on FRC's website at;

www.frc.org. uk/auditresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2008. QOur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’'s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Date: 14 November 2017

Gunsge

Roger Gillespie {Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of

KPMG

Chartered Accountants, Statutory Audit Firm
1 Stokes Place

St. Stephen's Green

Dublin 2

Ireland
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TRIODE ACQUISITIONS UK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

2017 2016
Note € €
Administrative expenses 25,949 150,992
Operating profit 4 25,949 150,992
Income from fixed assets investments 6 16,000,000 16,000,000
Interest payable 7 {4,439,797) (4,422,432)
Profit before tax 11,586,152 11,728,560
Tax on profit 8 - -
Profit for the financial year 11,586,152 11,728,560

There was no other comprehensive income for 2017 (2016: €NIL).

The notes on pages 11 to 19 form part of these financial statements.
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TRIODE ACQUISITIONS UK LIMITED
REGISTERED NUMBER: 5899894

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2017
2017 2016
Note € €
Fixed assets
Investments 9 270,075,159 270,075,159
270,075,159 270,075,159
Current assets
Cash at bank and in hand 93 650,017
03 650,017
Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 10 (178,597,739) (190,833,815}
Net current liabilities (178,597,646) {190,183,798)
Total assets less current liabilities 91,477,513 79,891,361
Net assets 91,477,513 79,891, 361
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 12 16,000 16,000
Capital contribution 45,000,000 45,000,000
Profit and loss account 46,461,513 34,875 361
Sharehoiders' funds 91,477,513 79,891,361

The company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to entities

subject to the small companies regime.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed on its behalf on
14 November 2017.

-
..................................

The notes on pages 11 to 19 form part of these financial statements.
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TRIODE ACQUISITIONS UK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEFTEMBER 2017

Calted up Capital Profit and

share capital contribution loss account Total equity

€ € € €

At 1 October 2015 16,000  45000,000 23,146,801 68,162,801
Comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year - - 11,728,560 11,728,560

At 1 October 2016 18,000 45,000,000 34,875,361 79,891,361
Comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year - - 11,586,152 11,586,152

At 30 September 2017 16,000 45,000,000 46,461,513 91,477,513

The notes on pages 11 to 19 form part of these financial statements.
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TRIODE ACQUISITIONS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

1.

Accounting policies

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements are presented in euro and have been prepared under the historical cost
convention unless otherwise specified within these accounting policies and in accordance with
Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework’ and the Companies Act 2006.

The preparation of financial statements are presented in euro and in compliance with FRS 101
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
judgment in applying the company's accounting policies (see note 3).

The company was, at the end of the year, a subsidiary of another company incorporated outside the
EEA and in accordance with Section 401 of the Companies Act 2006, is not required to produce, and
has not published, consolidated acceunts.

The following principal accounting policies have been applied:
Financial reporting standard 101 - reduced disclosure exemptions

The company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101:

. the requirement in paragraph 38 of IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' to present
comparative information in respect of:
- paragraph 79(a)(iv) of IAS 1,
. the requirements of paragraphs 10(d), 10(f), 16, 38A, 38B, 38C, 38D, 40A, 40B, 40C, 40D,
111 and 134-136 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

. the requirements of IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
. the requirements of paragraph 17 and 18A of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
. the requirements in 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions

entered into between two or more members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which is a
party to the transaction is wholly owned by such a member

Turnover

Turnover is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
company and the turnover can be reliably measured. Turnover is measured as the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates, value added tax and other sales
taxes.

Valuation of investments
Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost less accumulated impairment.

Investments in unlisted company shares, whose market value can be reliably determined, are
remeasured to market value at each balance sheet date. Gains and losses on remeasurement are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period. Where market value cannot
be reliably determined, such investments are stated at historic cost less impairment.

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is based on the first-in first-out
principle and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the stocks, production or conversion costs
and other costs in bringing them to their existing location and condition.
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TRIQODE ACQUISITIONS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

Accounting policies {continued)

16

1.7

1.8

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. If
payments received from customers exceed the income recognised, then the difference is presented
as deferred income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty
on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in no
more than three months from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial instruments

The company recognises financial instruments when it becomes a party to the contractual
arrangements of the instrument. Financial instruments are de-recognised when they are discharged
or when the contractual terms expire. The company's accounting policies in respect of financial
instruments transactions are explained below:

Financial assets
The company classifies all of its financial assets as loans and receivables.
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They arise principally through the provision of goods and services
to customers (e.g. trade receivables), but also incorporate other types of contractual monetary asset.
They are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to their
acquisition or issue, and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, less provision for impairment.

Impairment provisions are recognised when there is objective evidence (such as significant financial
difficulties on the part of the counterparty or default or significant deiay in payment) that the company
will be unable to collect all of the amounts due under the terms receivable, the amount of such a
provision being the difference between the net carrying amount and the present value of the future
expected cash flows associated with the impaired receivable. For trade receivables, which are
reported net, such provisions are recorded in a separate allowance account with the loss being
recognised within administrative expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. On
confirmation that the trade receivable will not be collected, the gross carrying value of the asset is
written off against the associated provision.

Financial liabilities

The company classifies ali of its financial liabilities as liabilities at amortised cost.

At amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including bank borrowings are initially recognised at fair value

net of any transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of the instrument. Such interest bearing
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method,
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TRIODE ACQUISITIONS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

Accounting policies {continued)

1.8

1.9

Financial instruments (continued)

which ensures that any interest expense over the period to repayment is at a constant rate on the
batance of the liability carried into the Balance Sheet.

Creditors

Creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers.

Creditors are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

1.10 Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency
The company's functional and presentational currency is Euros.
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions.

At each period end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. Non-
monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction and non-monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate
when fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the sefttement of transactions and from the
translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within 'finance income or costs’. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within
‘other operating income'.

1.11 Finance costs

Finance costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
over the term of the debt using the effective interest methed so that the amount charged is at a
constant rate on the carrying amount. Issue costs are initially recognised as a reduction in the
proceeds of the associated capital instrument.
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TRIODE ACQUISITIONS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.12 Taxation

Tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income , except that
a charge attributable to an item of income and expense recognised as other comprehensive income
or to an item recognised directly in equity is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date in the countries where the company
operates and generates income.

Deferred tax balances are recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not
reversed by the Balance Sheet date, except that:

. The recognition of deferred tax assets is limited to the extent that it is probable that they will be
recovered againgt the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits; and
. Any deferred tax balances are reversed if and when all conditions for retaining associated tax

allowances have been met.

Deferred tax balances are not recognised in respect of permanent differences except in respect of
business combinations, when deferred tax is recognised on the differences between the fair values of
assets acquired and the future tax deductions available for them and the differences between the fair
values of liabilities acquired and the amount that will be assessed for tax. Deferred tax is determined
using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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TRIODE ACQUISITIONS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

2.

General information

Triode Acquisitions UK Limited is a company incorporated in the United Kingdom. The registered office is
located at Moorlands Trading Estate, Saltash, Cornwall, PL12 6LX.

Judgments in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with FRS 101 requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

Operating profit

The operating profit is stated after charging:

2017 2016
€ €
Foreign exchange gain 25,974 151,030

Company information

Auditor's remuneration of €4,000 {2016: €4,000) for audit and tax services was borne by a related
company.

The company has no employees other than the directors, who did not receive any remuneration
{2016 €NIL)

Income from investments

2017 2016
€ €
Dividends received from unlisted investments 16,000,000 16,000,000

16,000,000 16,000,000
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TRIODE ACQUISITIONS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

Interest payable

2017 2016
€ €
Intergroup interest payable 4,439,797 4,422,432

4,439,797 4,422,432

Taxation

2017 2016

Total current tax - -

Deferred tax

Total deferred tax - -

Taxation on profit on ordinary activities - -

Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year differs from (2016 - differs from) the standard rate of corporation tax in the
UK of 19.5% (2016 - 20.0%). The differences are explained below:

2017 2016
€ €

Profit on ordinary activities before tax 11,586,162 71,728,560
Profit oh ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in
the UK of 19.5% (2016 - 20.0%) 2,259,300 2,345,712
Effects of:
Non-tax deductible amortisation of goodwill and impairment (75,765) (79,047)
Income non taxable- franked income (3,120,000) (3,200,000)
Group relief surrendered 754,861 933,335
Deferred tax not recognised 181,604 -

Total tax charge for the year - -
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TRIODE ACQUISITIONS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

Fixed asset investments

Investments
in
subsidiary
companies
€

Cost or valuation
At 1 October 2016 270,075,159
At 30 September 2017 270,075,159

Net book value

At 30 September 2017 270,075,159

At 30 September 2016 270,075,159

In the opinion of the directors, the value of the financial assets, none of which is listed, is not less than
cost or valuation.

The following were subsidiary undertakings of the company:

Subsidiary undertakings

Counfry of
Name incorporation Principal activity
BWG Foods Holdings Limited Ireiand Holding company

Appleby Westward Group
Limited United Kingdom  Distribution of foods, spirits, wines and tobacco products

BWG Holdings Limited United Kingdom Holding company
BWG Group Holdings Limited United Kingdem  Holding company

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2017 2016
€ €
Amounts owed to group undertakings 178,597,739 190,833,815

178,897,739 190,833,815

Amounts cwed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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TRIODE ACQUISITIONS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

11.

12,

13.

Financial instruments

2017 2016
€ €

Financial assets
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 93 650,017
Financial assets measured at fair value through the profit and loss 270,075,158 270,075 159

270,075,252 270,725176

Financial liabilities

Financial instruments measured at amortised cost 178,597,739 190,833,815

178,597,738 790,833,815

Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise of cash at bank.

Financial assets measuread at fair value through the profit and ioss consists of investment in
Subsidiaries.

Financial liabilittes measured at amortised cost comprise of amounts owed to group undertakings.

Share capital
2017 2016
€ €
Authorised
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of £0.01 each 14,846,708 14,846,708
Allotted, called up and fully paid

1,077,689 ordinary shares of £0.01 each 16,000 16,000

Each ordinary share shall entitie the holder thereof to receive notice of and to attend, speak and vote at
any meeting of the company.
Post balance sheet events

No significant events occurred since the balance sheet date which would require adjustment to or
disclosure in the financial statements.
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TRIODE ACQUISITIONS UK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

14,

15.

Controlling party

The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of TIL Finance Luxembourg Sarl a company incorporated in
Luxembourg. The company's ultimate parent undertaking is The Spar Group Limited, a company
incorporated in South Africa.

Approval of financial statements

The board of directors approved the financial statements on 14 November 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ APPROVAL OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the company are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and the preparation and integrity
of the financial statements and related information. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, The group’s independent external auditors,
Deloitte & Touche, have audited the financial statements and their unmeodified report is enclosed.

The directors are also responsible for the systems of internal control. These controls are designed to provide reasonable but not abseclute
assurance as to the reliability of the financial statements, and to adequately safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of the assets,
to record all hiabilities, and to prevent and detect material misstatement and foss. The systems are implemented and monitored by surtably
trained personnel with appropriate segregation of authority and duties. Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that
any material breakdown in the functioning of these controls, procedures and systems has occurred during the year under review.

In preparing the financial statements, the company and group have used appropriate accounting policies, supported by reascnable
judgements and estimates, and have complied with all applicable accounting standards. The directors are of the opinion that the financial
statements fairly present the financial position of the company and the group as at 30 September 2017 and the resuits of their operations
and cash flows for the year under review.

The annual financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis. Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate
that the company or the group will not remain a going concern for the foreseeable future.

The annual financial statements were appreved by the board of directors on 14 Novernkber 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

>n =

p——

M.J Hankinson GO O'Connor
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

14 November 2017

CERTIFICATE BY THE COMPANY SECRETARY

In terms of section 88(2)(e} of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, as amended {the Companies Act), | certify that, to the best of my knowledge
and belief, the company has lodged with the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission all such returns as are required of a public
company in terms of the Companies Act, in respect of the year ended 30 September 2017, and that all such returns are true, correct and
up to date.

—

MJ Hogan
Company Secretary

14 November 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE SPAR GROUP LTD

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statermnents of The SPAR Group Ltd (the group} set out on pages 10 1o 67, which
comprise the statements of financial position as at 30 September 2017, and statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our apinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and separate
financial position of the Group as at 30 September 2017, and its consclidated and separate financial performance and its consolidated and
separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and the Companies
Act of South Africa.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {ISAs). Our responsibilites under those standards are
further described n the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors Code of Professional Conduct
for Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial staternents in
Sauth Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Code and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A and B). We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basss for our opmion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated and
separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
The Key Audit Matters apply to the consclidated and separate financial statements in the same manner.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

HOW THE MATTER WAS ADDRESSED IN THE AUDIT

Valuation of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite fives

Goodwill and intangible assets comprises 15% of the total assets
of the group. These assets have been recognised in the statement
of financial position as a consequence of the acquisitive nature of
the group.

As required by 1AS 36: fmpairment of assets, annual impairment
tests are conducted to assess the recoverability of the carrying
value of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives. This
1s performed using discounted cash flow models. As disclosed in
note 13, of the firancial statements, the following assumptions
were applied in these models:

Sales growth rate;
Terminal value growth rate;
+  The discouni rates apphed to the projected future cash flows;
Expected return on assets; and
Multiplier rate.

The impairment test of these assets is considered to be a key audit
matter due tc the use of significant judgements and estimates
involved in estimating the recoverable values.

We assessed the assumptions used in the valuation models to
determine the value in use of cash generating units, described in
note 13 to the financial statements. Cur audit procedures included:

Wwe rebustly challenged the impairment calculations and tested
the validity and reasonableness of the assumptions appled
1 the assessment. We compared these to our independently
determined estimates and to approved business plans.

+ We performed independent sensitivities of the valuations. varying
the discount rates and growth rates and compared these results
with the carrying values of goodwill.

We evaluated the design and implementation of controls around
the goodwill valuaticns.

+  We assessed the presentation and disclosure of goodwill and the
intangible assets in the financial statements.

Where the value in use yielded potential impairment indicators,
we considered the estimates of proceeds less cost to sell.

Reasonable possible changes inthe key assumptionsin our sensitised
valuations did not result in further impairments.

We considered the disclosures for goodwill and intangible assets
to be accurate and complete.

BRased on the audit procedures performed, we concur with the
directors that the assumptions used in the goodwill and intangible
assets impairment review are appropnate and that the impairment
processed is sufficient.



KEY AUDIT MATTER HOW THE MATTER WAS ADDRESSED IN THE AUDIT

Valuation of financial liability relating to Tik. JV Ltd

The acquisition of both Ireland and Switzerland operations were  We  inspected the relevant supporting documentations and
structured with deferred acquisition of minority interests which  agreements relating to the financial hiability.
results In the recognition of financial liabilities in notes 28 and 39

of the financial statements. We assessed whether there have been any changes in the

current period to the shareholders agreements and changes to
The determination of the fair value ofthe financial liability for TIL JV Ltd  vanable inputs.

s considered a key audit matter as this 1s & non-routine matter
involving significant judgement in estimation of the future after tax
profits of TIL JV Ltd, which drives the value of the financial {iability.

Where changes have been made, we verified that the financial model
has been updated to correctly account for the changes.

We reviewed the adjustments to the estimated profit forecasts for
the respective years.

We compared the forecast profit input to the most recent
business plan.

We audited the calculation of the estimated future vaiue of the liability
and robustly challenged the underlying assumptions and variables
where these reflected changes from previous periods. We challenged
whether appropriate cognisance had been given to current macre-
economic developments.

We performed tests of detail to check the mechanical and arithmetic
accuracy of the financial model.

We tested the design and implementation of the controls relating to
the review process adopted for the finalisation of the key nputs into
the model.

We assessed the presentation and disclosure of the financial liability
in the financial statements.

The following assumptions were applied in the valuation model:
Estimated future profitability of TIL JV Ltd,

+  Discount rate; and
Closing rand/euro exchange rate.

Based on the audit procedures performed, we concluded that the
estimated future hability value falls within a reasonably acceptable
range, and hence we concur with the fair value model adopted and the
resultant liability value recorded and we considered the disclosures
for the financial liability to be accurate and comprehensive.

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the cther information. The other informaticn compnses the Directors’ report, the Company Secretary's
certificate and Audit Committee report which we cbtained prior to the date of this auditor's report and the Integrated Report, which is
expected to be made available to us after that date, Other informaticn does not include the cansolidated and separate financial statements
and our auditer's report thereon.

Qur opirion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consclidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility 15 to read the other information and,
in doing 50, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or
our knowtedge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the
other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
informatian, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated and separate financial statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such internat control as the directors
determine s necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE SPAR GROUP LTD (CONTINUED)

in preparing the consolidated and separate finzncial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and company's
ability to continue as a geing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either mntend to liquidate the Group and/or Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consclidated and separate financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a maternal
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are considered matenal if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these conseolidated and separate
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We zlso

Identify and assess the nisks of material misstatement of the consclidated and separate financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may mvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissicns, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the auddt in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the group's and company’s internat control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting pelicies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's and
company's ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to madify our epinien. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the group and/or company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the censolidated and separate financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

+  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infermation of the entities or business activities within the group
te express an opinicn on the consolidated and separate financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remam solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a staternent that we have comphed with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safequards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance m the audit of the
consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumslances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expacted to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatery requirements

in terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015, we report that Deloitte & Touche
has been the auditor of The SPAR Group Ltd for 50 years.

was Z._,A

Deloitte & Touche
Registered Auditor

Per: Gavin Kruger CA{SA), RA
Partner

14 November 2017



DIRECTORS’ STATUTORY REPORT

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY OF THE COMPANY

The principal activity of the group 1s as a wholesaler and distributor of goods and services to SPAR grocery stores, Buld it buiders’
merchandise outlets, TOPS at SPAR liquor stores and multiple other branded group retail outlets in Southern Africa, Switzerland, Ireland and
South West England, The group operates 10 main distribution centres, which are strategically iocated close to the major metropolitan areas.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders for the year ended 30 September 2017 amounted to R1 8201 million
(2016° R1 8150 million). This translates into headline earnings per share of 9525 cents (2016: 1 020.0 cents) and narmalised
headline earnings per share of 975.8 cents (2016: 1 033.0 cents), based on the weighted average number of shares {net of treasury shares)
in issue durng the year ended 30 September 2017, Normalised headline earnings represent headline earnings excluding business-defmed
exceptional items.

STATED CAPITAL
Details of the authorised and issued stated capital of the company are set out in note 25,

TREASURY SHARES

During the year, The SPAR Group Ltd Employee Share Trust (2004} purchased 710 086 (2016: 1 154 969) shares in The SPAR Group Ltd
for R128.4 million (2016: R227.3 million). A total of 708 034 (2016 1 203 500} shares were reissued to opticn holders who exercised
thair option rights, At year-end, 96 473 (2076- 94 421) shares in the company were held by the trust. At the 2017 annual general meeting
(AGM), a general authonty was granted by sharehciders to allow the company to acquire its own shares in terms of the Companies
Act. The directors consider it will be advantagecus for the company for this general authority to continue. Such authority will be used if
the directors consider that it 1s i the best interests of the company and shareholders to effect such share purchases in light of prevailing
circumstances and the cash resources of the company at the time. Sharehoiders will be asked to consider a similar special resolution to
this effect at the forthcoming AGM.

DIVIDENDS

A final dividend of 410.0 cents in respect of 2016 was declared on 15 November 2016 and paid on 12 December 2016. An interim dividend
of 240 cents per share was declared on 30 May 2017 and paid on 26 June 2017. A final dividend of 435.0 per share was declared on
14 November 2017, The salient dates for the payment of the final dividend are:

Last day to trade cum-dividend Tuesday, 5 December 2017
Shares to commence trading ex-dividend Wednesday, 6 December 2017
Record date Friday, 8 December 2017
Payment of dividend Menday, 17 December 2017

Shareholders will not be permitted to dematerialise or rematerialise their share certificates between Wednesday, 6 December 2017 and
Friday, 8 December 2017, both days inclusive.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS
The company passed the following special resolutions at the AGM held on Tuesday, 7 February 201 7:

special resclution number 1 — amendment of Memorandum of Incorporation (removal of preference shares from authorised share capital);
special resolution number 2 — financial assistance 1o related or inter-related companies; and
+ special resolution number 3 — non-executive directors’ fees,

DIRECTORATE

Details of the directors of the company at the date of this report are disclosed in the online integrated report. In terms of the
company’'s Memorandum of Incorporation, one-third of the non-executive directors retire annually by rotation at the AGM. Accordingly,
Prof MP Mad: and Mr HK Mehta retired at the AGM held on Tuesday, 7 February 2017, but offered themselves for reappointment.

At 30 September 2017, the directors beneficially held 38 900 {(2016: 17 600) shares in the company and unexercised options to acquire
a total of 604 900 (20716 812 000) ordinary shares in the company {refer netes 36 and 37).

Particulars refating to the directors’ remuneration and interests and directors’ share scheme interests are set out in notes 36 and 37
respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ STATUTORY REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, a statutory committee of the board, addresses matters requinng specialist attention. The committee’s responsibility
includes, but is not limited to, examining the internal control processes, reviewing and approving the internal audit plan, assessing the
reports of the internal and external auditors and confirming that the company will remain a going concern, The external and internal auditors
have unrestricted access to the Audit Committee, and attend meetings to report on their findings and tec discuss accounting, auditing,
internal control and financiat reporting matters, During the year, the independence of the auditors was tested and confirmed.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The company has in place a Risk Committee, which operates as a subcommittee of the board. The committee is responsible for monitoring
the management of risks that may affect the company's operations. The group has identified the top 20 major sirategic risks and the
numerous operational risks that may have an effect on the operations of the company. Regular nsk management audits are conducted in
conjunclion with appropriate risk management consultants, where necessary. ldentified risks are reviewed and action plans to minimise
the possibility of a loss occurring are in place. Risks are considered to be adequately covered, and self-insurance programmes are in
operat:ion covering primary levels of risk. Assets are insured at current replacement values. The group's practice regarding insurance
includes an annual assessment, in conjunction with the group’s insurance brokers, of the risk exposure relative to assets and pessible
liabilities arising from business transactions. In addrtion, the group’s nsurance pregramme is monitored by the Risk Committee.

On 1 Novermnber 2016, the King IV Report on Corporate Governance™ for South Africa, 2016 {(King W™) was released and hecame effective
for organisations with a financial year that starts on, or after, 1 April 2017, The company has reviewed its governance structures to ensure
alignment with King IV™ and disclosures in terms of King V™ have been fully integrated in the abridged and online integrated reports.

The Audit Commuttee report is set out on pages 7 to 9. The Commuttee reports disclosed in the online integrated report are as follows:
Nomination Committee report

+  Remuneration Committee report

= Risk Committee report
Social and Ethics Committee report

SUBSIDIARIES

The interest of the company in the aggregate net profit/loss after taxation of subsidiaries was a profit of R418.4 million (2016: profit of
R369.0 mullion). Detaits of the company’s principai subsidiaries are set out in note 14.

COMPETITION TRIBUNAL
Details pertaining to the Competition Commission's enquiry into the grocery retail section are cantained in the online integrated report,
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Matters or circumstances arising since the end of the financial year, which have or may significantly affect the financial position of the group
or the results of its operations, are disclosed in note 41,



AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee {the commiltee} is pleased to present its report for the twelve months ended 30 September 2017. This report is
made in pursuant to the requirements of section 94(7)(f) of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, as amended.

COMMITTEE GOVERNANCE

Compeosition and meetings
The committee comprises three independent non-executive directors who have been selected with the aim of providing the range of
financial and commercial experience necessary to meet its responsibilities in a robust and independent manner.

Members of the commuttee and its Chairman are appointed by shareholders, on the recornmendation of the Nomination Committee
and the board. Sharehalders will again be requested to apprave the appointment of the committee for the 2018 financial year at the company’s
AGM to be held on 7 February 2018. The Nommation Committee has norminated for re-election Mr CF Wells {Chairman), Mrs M Mashologu
and Mr HK Mehta as members of the committee. Members’ qualifications and experience are available in the online integrated report.

The committee meets formally three times a year. The Chief Executive Officer, Group Financial Director, internal audit manager and external
auditor are required to attend committee meetings. Members of the group's executive management tearmn attend meetings as required,
while the Chairman of the board attends meetings by invitation.

ATTENDANCE
Member Status 14 Nav 2076 16 May 2017 T Aug 2017
CF Wells {Chairman) independent non-executive v v v
M Mashclogu independent non-executive v v v
HK Mehta independent non-executive Ng v v

Terms of reference
The committee operates in accordance with a formal terms of reference and work plan, which was reviewed and amended in line with the
King IV™ recommendations and approved by the beard on 2 August 2017.

A copy of the committee’s terms of reference and work plan is available online.

Role and responsibilities
The committee oversees:

the effectiveness of the company’s assurance functions and services;
»+  thentegrity of the annual financial statements, including other external reports 1ssued by the company from time to time,
+  the management of financial and other risks that affect the integrity of external reports issued by the company from time to time; and

the engagement of assurance services and functions, which enable an effective control environment, and support the integrity of
information for internal decision-making and of the company's external reports.

Details of the committee's duhes are contained in its terms of reference, which is available online.

In addition to the key activities detalled on pages 8 to 9, the committee, during the period under review, considered

+  the unaudited interim results report for the period ended 31 March 2017, including all summarised information;
all other summarised information issued during the year (o ensure that a balanced view was pravided;

the disclosure of sustainability issues in the online integrated report to ensure that it was reliable and did not conflict with the financial
information;

- statutory and JSE Listings Requirements;
accounting principles;
the effectiveness of internal financial controls,
the going concern of the company;
banking facilities;
King V™ recommendations;

+  legal matters concerning the group;
whistle-blowing complaints;

head leases held by the group;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (CONTINUED)

the group's delegation of authority policy, and
the external auditor's audit report and key audit matters and concurred with the comments.

At its meeting held on 13 November 2017, the committee reviewed and recommended the online integrated report and annual financial
staternents to the board for approval and publication.

Self-evaluation of committee performance
The committee also undertook a self-evaluation of its performance and strongly believed that:

+ it was appropriately constituted with a clearly defined terms of reference and appropriate reporting lines to the board;
+ the frequency and duration of committee meetings were appropriate to enable members to discharge their mandate;
+ it had a mix of the required skills to address a range of 1ssues and risks pertaining to the commuttee,

+ the members had a clear understanding of their respensibilities and authority;

+ it provided clear and specific guidance to the board as mandated, and assisted the board in its overall responsibility to ensure the proper
governance of the company;

+ members were well prepared for meetings; and
+  the Chairman of the committee was effective.

EXTERNAL AUDIT

The committee has primary responsiblity for overseeing the relationship with, and the performance of, the external auditor. This includes
making recommendations on ther reappointment and assessing their independence, as set out in section 94(8} of the Companies Act.

As a result of the proposed implementation of an audit firm rotation process, and taking into account that Deloitte & Touche has been the
group's external auditor for the last 50 years, the company initizted a change in auditor, In doing so, the cornmittee conducted a formal
tender for the proposed appointment of a new external audit firm for the 2018 financial year. The committee appoinied a selection panet to
undertake much of the detailed work and invited PricewaterhouseCoopers {PwC), Ernst and Young (EY), Binder Dijker Otte (BDO) and Nexia
SABAT to tender.

In the process, the tendering firms met with executive and senior finance management and submitted detailed written proposals before
presenting ta the selection panel. The selection panel and committee assessed the firms against key critena and recommended to the board
that PwC be appomted as auditor to the group for the financial year ending 30 September 2018.

The criterra used to reach this degision included:
+ reputation, ndependence, guality and experience of the firm to the SPAR Group,
their transformation status and processes;
+ Iindependence and guality of the audit team;
capability to provide comprehensive and high-guality audit services;
+  approach to ensuring a smooth transition process,
commitment to sharing ideas and insights on best practice developments in accounting and reporting;
approach 1o the tender process; and
independence and quality of the team,

Accordingly, the committes recommends and has nominated, for appointment at the 2018 AGM, PwC as the external audit firm, and
Ms Sharalene Randelhoff as the designated audit partner, responsible for performing the functions of auditer for the 2018 financial
year. PwC is required to rotate the designated audit partner every five years and, accerdingly, the current lead audit partner will be
required to change i 2023,

In respect of the 2017 financial year, the committee was satisfied with the quality and effectiveness of Deloitte’s audit process and that
Deloitte and the designated audit partner, Mr G Kruger, were accredited as such on the JSE list of auditors and their advisors.

The committee would ke to thank Deloitte for their significant contribution as the group's external auditor over the years, and look forward
to working with PwC.

Non-audit services policy
External auditors may only be considered as a supplier of such services where there is no alternative supplier for these services, there is no
other commercially viable alternative or the non-audit service is related to and would add value to the external audit.

The total amount of fees earned during the year by the external auditor in respect of non-audit services was 15,9 miflion (2016: R4.8 million}.



INTERNAL AUDIT

The committee is responsible for ensuring that the company's internat audit function 15 independent and has the necessary resources,
standing and authority within the company to enable it to discharge its duties. Furthermore, the committee oversees co-operation between
the internai and external aud:tors, and serves as a link between the board and these functions.

The internat audit function reports centraily and is responsible for reviewing and providing assurance on the adequacy of the internal control
environment across all the company's operations. The group internal audit manager, Mr S Naidoo, 1s responsible for reporting the findings
of the mternal audit work against the agreed internal audit plan to the committee on a regular basis and has direct access to the committee,
primarly through its chairman. The committee 1s also responsible for the performance assessment of the group internal audit manager and
the internal audit function.

During the year, the committee:

satisfied itself that the group internal audit manager, Mr S Naidoo, is competent and possessed the appropriate expertise and experience
to act in this capacity, and believes that the company’s internal audit function met its objectives and that adequate procedures were in
place to ensure that the group complies with its legal, regulatory and other responsibilities; and

+  reviewed and approved the internal audit plan and internal audit charter.

The committee oversaw a process by which internal audit performed a written assessment of the effectiveness of the company’s system
of internal control and nisk management, including internal financial controls. This written assessment by internal audit formed the basis
for the committee's recommendation to the board for the board to report thereon,

EVALUATION OF THE EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE OF THE GROUP FINANCIAL DIRECTOR AND FINANCE FUNCTION

The committee confirms that it is satisfied with Mr MW Godfrey, the Group Financial Director, who possesses the appropriate expertise and
experience to act in this capacity.

The commuttee considered the appropriateness of the expertise and adequacy of resources of the finance function and was satisfied with
the experience of the senior members of management responsible for the group function.
RISK MANAGEMENT

The board has allocated the oversight of risk governance, technology and information governance and compliance governance to the
Risk Committee. Mr Weils, the chairman of this committee, is also the chairman of the Risk Committee and ensures that information
relevant to the Risk Committee is transferred and shared regularly with this committee.

The committee fulfils an overview role regarding financial reporting risks, internal financial contrels, taxation risks, compliance and
regulatory risks, risk appetite and tolerance, fraud nsk (as it relates to financial reporting) and information technology risk (as it related to
financial reporting), and the committee is satisfied that these areas have been appropriately addressed.

COMBINED ASSURANCE

The company is in the process of developing a combined assurance model which will formally map the level of assurance being provided
by the different lines of defence to mitigate these risks. The committee plans to review the combined assurance framework and poticy for
the company in 2018, which would be completed during the 2018 financial year.

The committee met with the group internal auditor and external auditor without management present to facilitate an exchange of views and
concerns that may not be appropriate for discussion in an open forum, with no concerns raised,

The commmuttee is satisfied that it fulfilled its responsibilities i accordance with its terms of reference for the reporting period and is further
satisfied that it has performed its statutory duties as set cut in the Companies Act and has complied with its legal responsibilities.

Thanks go to the members of the committee, internal audit and external audit for their dedicated and constructive contributions to the
functioning of the commttee.

CF Wells
Chairman

14 Novernber 2017
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

GROUP COMPANY
Rmillion Notes 2017 2016 2017 2016
Revenue 2 97 174.2 92 227.3 63 162.0 60 394.7
Turnover 95 461.1 90 688.5 62 551.1 598376
Cost of sales (85830,2) (822815 (57459.3) (54910.9)
Gross profit 96309 8407.0 5091.8 49767
Other income 2 17131 15388 610.9 5571
Net operating expenses 3 (8 760.6) (7347.6) (3675.2) (3380.5)
Warehousing and distribution expenses (2871.7) (2 693.4) (1 643.4) (1535.2)
Marketing and selling expenses {4 000.4) (2895.7) (1108.9) (1 006.8)
Administration and information technology expenses {1 888.5) {1758.5) {922.9) (838.5)
Trading profit 2583.4 259872 20275 27033
BBBEE transactions 4 (0.9) (20.9) (0.9) (20.9)
Operating profit 25825 2577.3 2026.6 20824
Other non-operating items 5 (54.6) (24.5) (61.8) (2.4)
Interest income & 123.2 98.4 106.5 83.3
Interest expense 6 {113.2} (110.4) (31.7) (42.0)
Finance costs including foreign exchange gains and losses & (64.4) (106.5) (87.8) (94 B)
Share of equily accounted associate (losses)/income 15 {8.8) 49
Profit before taxation 2464.7 24392 1962.0 20267
Income tax expense 7 (644.6) (624.2) (560.3) (557.5)
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders 1 820.1 18150 1401.7 14697
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Actuarial gain/(loss) on post-retirement medical aid 27.2 11.4 (7.9 11.4 (7.9)
Deferred tax relating to actuarial gain/{loss) an post-retirement
medical aid (3.2) 2.2 (3.2) 2.2
Actuarial gain/(loss) an retirement funds 271 4321 {220.1)
Deferred tax relating to actuarial gain/{loss) on retirement funds (67.9) 30.7
tems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Loss on cash flow hedge {4.6) (39.2) (39.2}
Tax relating to loss on cash flow hedge 0.6 11.0 110
Exchange differences from translation of foreign operations 42.0 {(29.4)
Total comprehensive income 2 230.5 1562.3 1 409.9 14353
Eamings per share (cents) 8
Basic 945.2 107100
Diluted 939.1 9%9,5




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

GROUP COMPANY
Rmillion Notes 2017 2016 2077 2016
ASSETS
Non-current assets 11 438.4 10610.4 4984.2 43985
Property, plant and equipment 12 65539 61603 23345 20076
Goodwill and intangible assets 13 41622 40083 4580 421.5
Investment in subsidiaries 14 16825 16825
Investment in associates and joint ventures 15 117.3 384 1216 324
Other investments 16 57.7 54.2 4.8 16
Operating lease recevables 17 125.4 100.5 134.8 870
Loans 18 406.2 2178 2439 148.6
Deferred taxation asset 19 15.7 309 a1 17.3
Current assets 16631.2 165847 10 066.0 983956
inventories 20 38164 38109 1890.3 17768
Trade and other receivables 21 10814.3 10 544.0 7626.3 73130
Prepayments 78.1 754 43.9 389
Operating lease receivables 17 60.7 63.4 60.7 63.4
Loans 18 116.9 46.8 353 519
Income tax recoverahle 22 4.1 472
Other current financial assets 0.2 0.2
Cash and cash eguivalents — SPAR 23 1565.6 16118 409.3 565.6
Cash and cash equivaients — guilds and trusts 23 174.9 428.2
Assets held for sale 24 141.0 160.7 3.7 7.2
Total assets 28 2106 27 3568 150539 14 2453
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves 6 575.0 5642.9 6 644.5 556316
Stated capital 25 22315 22315 22315 22315
Treasury shares 26 16.1) (18.7)
Currency translation reserve 49.9 7.9
Share-based payment reserve 2930 261.1 2930 261
Equity reserve (M7.0) {713.0) (545.7) {545.7)
Hedging reserve (32.2) (28.2) (28.2) (28.2)
Retained earnings 4765.9 39023 3693.9 36129
Non-current liabilities 7 350.1 7 590.1 1266.2 1069.8
Deferred taxation liabiity 19 361.2 290.7
Post-employment benefit obligations 27 940.2 13922 155.0 156.4
Financial lizhilities 28 1700.1 1 568.¢ 963.8 8244
Long-term borrowings 29 4160.4 4164.3
Operating lease payables 17 1414 116.0 1414 89.0
Other non-current financial Labilities 4.9
Long-term provisions 31 11.9 58.9
Current liabilities 14 285.5 141228 8149.2 75439
Trade and other payables 30 13 452.7 13162.5 80656 7546.8
Current portion of long-term horrowings 29 364.4 265.9
Operating lease payables 17 62.8 65.6 62.8 65.6
Provisions 31 453 38.0 54 3.0
Income tax hability 22 91.8 83.7 154 285
Bank cverdrafts — SPAR 23 268.5 507.1
Total equity and liabilities 28 210.6 27 3558 15 053.9 142453
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

Currency
Stated Treasury translation
Rmillion Notes capital shares reserve
GROUP
Capital and reserves at 30 September 2015 67.6 (26.9) 37.3
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders
Loss on cash flow hedge
Actuarial loss on post-retirement medical aid 27
Actuarial Joss on retirement funds 27
Recognition of share-based payments 3
Take-up of share options 26 2355
Transfer arising from take-up of share options
Transfer arising front closure of BBBEE transaction
Share repurchases 26 (227.3)
Dividends paid 10
Issue of shares 25 21639
Recognition of BBBEE transaction 4
Non-controlling interest arising on business acquisition 33
Purchase obligation cf non-controlling interest 39
Exchange rate translation (29.4)
Capital and reserves at 30 September 2016 22315 (18.7) 79
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders
Loss on cash flow hedge
Actuarial gain on post-retirement medical aid 27
Actuarial gain on retirement funds 27
Recognition of share-based payments 3
Take-up of share options 26 131.0
Transfer arising from take-up of share options
Settlernent of share-based payments 1.4
Share repurchases 26 {129.8)
Dividends paid 10
Exchange rate translation 42,9
Capital and reserves at 30 September 2017 22315 (16.1) 49.9
COMPANY
Capital and reserves at 30 September 2015 67.6 - -
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders
Loss on cash flow hedge
Actuarial ioss on post-retirement medical aid 27
Recognition of share-based payments 3
Contribution to Employee Share Trust
Transfer ansing from take-up of share options
Transfer anising from closure of BBBEE transaction
Bividends paid 10
lssue of shares 25 21639
Recognition of BBBEE transaction 4
Capital and reserves at 30 September 2016 22315 - -
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders
Actuarial gain on post-retirement medical aid 27
Recognition of share-based payments 3
Contribution to Employee Share Trust
Transfer arising from take-up of share options
Settlement of share-based payments 1.4
Share repurchases 26 (1.4)
Dividends paid 10
Capital and reserves at 30 September 2017 2231.5 - -




Share-based

Attributable

payment Retained Equity Hedging Non-controlling to ordinary
reserve earmnings reserve reserve interest shareholders
4751 33710 (545.7) - - 33284
18150 18150
(28.2) (28.2)
(57 {5.7)
{(189.4) {189.4)

418 418
(152.5) 83.0
1525 {152.5) -
(216.5) 216.5 -
{227.3)
{1152.6) {1152.6)

21639

10.7 10.7
3848 384.8

{180.3) (384.8) {565.1)

13.0 {16.4)

2611 34902.3 (713.00 (28.2) - 56429
1820.1 18201
(4.0) {4.0)

8.2 8.2

364.2 364.2

333 333
(77.2) 53.8
7.2 (71.2) -
{1.4) -
(129.8)
(1 251.7) {12517

(4.0) 38.0

293.0 47659 {717.0) (32.2) - 6 575.0
4251 32380 {545.7) - - 3185.0
1469.2 1468.2

{282) (28.2)

(5.7) {5.7)

418 41.8
(152.5) (152.5)
1525 {152.5) -
(216.5) 216.5 -
(1152.86) (1152.6)

21639

10.7 10.7
2611 36129 {545.7) (28.2) - 5531.6
1401.7 1401.7

8.2 8.2

333 333
{(17.2) {77.2)
77.2 (77.2) -
(1.4) -
(1.4)
{1251.7) (1251.7)

293.0 36939 (545.7) {28.2) - 5 644.5

THE SPAR GROUP LTD ANNUAI FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2017



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

GROUP COMPANY
Rmillion Notes 2017 2Me 2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1411.2 15473 622.6 384.2
Cash generated from operations 32 32921 32802 23675 20115
interest received 1099 89.0 1019 77.4
Interest paid (112.5) (110.0) 31.7) (42.0)
Taxation pad 22 {626.6) (529.3) (563.4) (510.7)
Dwvidends paid 10 {1251.7) (1152.6) (1251.7) {1152.6)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1 496.0) (1613.5) (807.5) (1 342.4)
Acquisition of businesses/subsidiaries 33.1 42.7) (757.5) (94.0) (786.5)
Proceeds from disposal of businesses 33.2 48.0 10.0 48.0 10.0
Proceeds on disposal of assets held for sale 259 436
Investment to expand operations (842.1) {441.9) (459.9) (229.8)
Investment to maintain operations (248.8) (346.8) (48.5) (94.3)
— Replacement of property, plart and equipment (330.0) {372.6) (92.7) {(100.8)
- Proceeds on dispesal of property, plant and equipment 81.2 258 44.2 6.3
Net movement on loans and investments 32.1 (336.3) (120.8) (253.1) (241.8)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 34 1 666.6 (1.4) 2163.9
Proceeds from issue of shares 21638 21639
Proceeds from exercise of share options 53.8 83.0
Proceeds from/(repayments of) borrowings 79.4 (353.0)
Share repurchases 26 {129.8) (227.3) (1.4)
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents (81.49) 1600.4 (186.3) 12057
Net cash balances/(overdrafts) at beginning of year 15329 (37.8) 595.6 610.1)
Exchange rate transiation 20.5 (29.7)
Net cash balances at end of year 23 14720 1532.8 409.3 595.6




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

Statement of compliance

The consolidated (group) and separate (company) annual financial statements {financial statements} are stated in South African
rand and are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and its interpretations adopted by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) in issue and effective for the group at 30 September 2017, and the SAICA
Financial Reporting Guides, as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee and Financial Pronouncements as issued by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council and the Companies Act of South Africa, 771 of 2008, as amended.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the revaluation of financial instruments, the
valuation of share-based payments and the post-retirement obligations. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and services, The principal accounting policies are consistent with those of the
previcus year, The group has considered and adopted all new standards, interpretaticns and amendments to existing standards
that are effective as at year-end. These amendments had nc material impact on the financial statements. The following new
standards or amendments, which are not yet effective, have not yet heen adopted by the directors. The directors continue to
assess the impact thereof.

Effective for annual periods

New standards Description beginning on or after
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2078
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

Amendments to existing standards

1AS 7 Amendments arising under the 1 January 2017
disclosure initiative

IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets 1 January 2017
for Unrealised Losses

1AS 40 Amendments clarifying the requirements 1 January 2618
on transfers to, or from, investment property

IFRS 2 Amendment to Classification and 1 January 2017

Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transacticns

IFRS 12 Amendments resulting from 2014-2016 1 January 2017
Annual Improvements Cycle
Various IFRS 1,1AS 28 Annual improvements 2014-2016 cycle 1 January 2018

The group has not early adopted nor plans to early adopt any of the above. Based on an initial IFRS assessment, the application
thereof in future financial periods is not expected to have a significant impact on the group's reported results, financial positon
and cash flows, except for the standards set out below,

IFRS 9. Financial instruments replaces existing guidance in I1AS 39 on the classificaton and measurement of financial
instruments. Inrelation te the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 introduces an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under 1AS 39. The expected credit loss mode! requires an entity 1o account for expected credit losses
and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recogniticn,
Entities will recogrise either 12 months or lifetime expected credit loss, depending on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. For certain trade recewables, the simplified approach may be applied whereby the
lifetime expected credit losses are always recognised. IFRS 9 also includes new general hedge accounting requirements which
retain the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently available in 1AS 38, Under IFRS 9, greater flexibility has been
introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been averhauled and
replaced with the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity's risk management activities have also been intreduced. IFRS 9 also carries
forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from 1AS 39. The group anticipates a change
in the measurement of impairment losses recognised in relation to financial assets, as well as in the assessment of hedge
effectiveness. However, it 1s currently estimated that this wili not have a material impact on trading profit. Changes to disclosure
in line with IFRS 9 will also be seen in the financial statements. The group continues to assess the potential impact on its group
financial statements regarding the application of IFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINJED}

1.2

Basis of preparation - ~o-trnuead:

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers establishes a single, comprehensive revenue recogmition madel for all
contracts with customers to achieve greater consistency n the recognition and presentation of revenue. It replaces existing
revenue recognition guidance, including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction.

Under {FRS 15 a new five-step approach requires revenue 1o be recogrnised based on the satisfaction of performance obligations,
which occurs when centrol of goods or services transfers to a customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in
IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 15. This new standard may
affect agent vs principle accounting and the manner in which certain income streams relating to ancillary sales and services are
accounted for. It is anticipated that & possible change in the classification of statement of comprehensive income disclosure
line items, such as revenue, turnover and other trading income, may occur. However, it is currently estimated that this will not
have a material impact on trading profit. The group continues to assess the potential impact on its group financial statements
regarding the application of IFRS 15.

IFRS 16: Leases provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a Jow value, Lessors continue to classify leases as
aperating or finance, with IFRS 16's approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged froam its predecessor, 1AS 17 Lease
assets should be measured initially at the same amount as the lease liability and also include costs directly related to entering
into the lease. { ease assets are amortised in a similar way to other assets such as property, plant and equiprnent. The group has
an extensive operating lease portfelio, acting as both lessor and lessee. The majority of the group’s head lease arrangements
in South Africa include a back-to-back sublet agreement with its independent retailers, and the application of IFRS 16 will
result in the recognition of both a finance iease asset and a finance lease hability in these instances, and the de-recognition of
operating lease assets and habilites. To the extent of leased property that 1s not sub-let, the group will recognise a night-of-use
asset and a finance lease liability. The application of IFRS 16 will result in changes to both the statement of financial position
and staterment of comprehensive income line items, including but net limited to, property, plant and equipment, operating lease
assels, operating lease habihties, operating lease income and expense, depreciation, and finance costs. Key balance sheet
metnics such as leverage and finance ratios, debt covenants and income statement metrics, such as earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA), will be impacted. The group continues to assess the potential impact on its group
financial staternents regarding the application of IFRS 16.

Basis of consolidation

The group consolidated financial statements incorporate the results and financial position of the company and all its subsidiaries,
which are defined as entities over which the group has the ability to exercise control so as to ohtam benefits from therr activities.
The results of subsidiaries are included from the effective dates of acquisition and up to the effective dates of disposal.

All intercompany transactions and balances between group companies are eliminated.

where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries 1o bring the accounting policies in line with
those used by the group.

The company has effective control of The SPAR Guild of Southern Africa and The Build it Guitd of Southern Africa and the assets
and liabilities of these entities are consolidated with those of the company. As the company acts as an agent of these guilds, the
income and the expenditure of the guilds has been offset and not consolidated.

Investrments acaguired with the intention of disposal withn 12 months are not consolidated.

1.3.1 Business combinations
The acguwsition of businesses 1s accounted for under the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at
the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of the exchange of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the group in exchange for control of the acquiree, Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred,

The acquiree's identifiable assets, habilities and contingent liabilites that meet the conditions for recognition under
IFRS 3 Business Combinaticns, are recognised at their fair values at acquisition date.

Goodwill ansing on acquisition 15 inibially recognised at cost. Non-contrelling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle thewr holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value, or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction by transaction basis,



1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 110N,
1.3 Basis of consolidation: ~o i e
1.3.1 Business combinations (continued)

When the consideration transferred by the group in a business combination includes assets or labilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration 1s measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the purchase consideration in a business combination. Changes in the fair valug of the contingent
consideration that qualfy as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding
adjustments against goodwill. Measurement perod adjustments are adjustments that arise from additionat information
obtained during the ‘measurement perod’ (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumnstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subseguent accounting for changes in fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with |AS 39 Financial Instruments, Recognition and Measurement, or IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss,

i the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities that are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date thatf
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.

Arrangements to acquire non-controliing interests at future dates are recognised as financial habilities at the present
value of the expected payment. Changes i the measurement of the financial liability due to unwinding of the discount,
changes in the expected future payment or foreign exchange translation are recognised in profit or loss, The effect of
translating the closing balance of financial habilities to the reporting currency 1s reported in other comprehensive income,
tn such cases, The SPAR Group Ltd consohidates 100% of the subsidiary’s results.

The company's investments in ordinary shares of its subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment and f
denominated in foreign currencies, are translated at historical rates.

1.3.2 investment in associates and joint arrangements

The results and assets and liabilities of asscciates or jont ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statemnents using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held
for sale, in which case it 1s accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets held for Sale. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or joint venture s inially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the
group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the group's net investment in the associate or joint venture), the group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the group has incurred legal or constructive abligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

The company’'s investments in ordmary shares of its associates and joint arrangements are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment.

1.4 Goodwill
Goodwili anising on the acquisition of entities represents the excess of the cost of acguisition over the group's interest in the fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the entities recognised at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the group's cash-generating units. Cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allacated are tested annually for impairment or more frequently when there is an indication that the
cash-generating unit (CGU} may be impaired. Any impairment loss is recognised directly to profit and loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subseguent period. On disposal of an entity, attributable goodwill 1s included in the
deterrmunation of the profit and loss on disposal.

The group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate and & joint venture 1s described in note 1.3 above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES : LU TINJED:

1.5

1.6

1.7

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than in rands are iniially recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates of the transactions.
All assets and liabilities denominated in such currencies are translated at the rates ruling at pencd-end. Exchange differences
arising on the settiement of monetary items or on reporting the group’s monetary items at rates different from those at which
they were initially recorded, are recognised to profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented in the currency of the primary econemic environment
in which the entity operates (its functicnal currency). For the purpose of the consclidated financial statements, the results and
financial position of each entity is expressed in rands, which 1s the functional currency of the company, and the presentation
currency for the consobdated financial statements. For the purpose of presenting consokdated financial statements, the
assets and liabiities of the group’s foreign operations (including comparatives) are expressed in rands using exchange rates
prevailling at period-end. Income and expense items {including comparatives) are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuated sigrificantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. All resulting translational differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented as a
separate component of equity in the currency translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and transiated at the rate of exchange prevalling at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and eguipment
Property, ptant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Land is
stated at cost and not depreciated as it has an unkmited useful life.

Land and buildings are held for use in the supply of goods.

Owner-occupied buddings are stated at cost and depreciated at 0% to 2% per annum on a straight-iine basis to ther estimated
residual value.

Improvements to leasehold properties are shown at cost and written off over the remaining period of the lease and the item's
useful life.

The cost less residual values of plant and equipment is depreciated over their estimated useful lives on a straight-iine basis. The
useful lives and residual values of all assets are reviewed annually and are adjusted should any changes arise. Depreciation is
recognised in profit or loss. The following depreciation rates apply

Vehicles 10% to 25% per annum
Plant and equipment 8.3% to 33.3% per annum
Furniture and fittings 4% to 33.3% per annum
Computer equipment 10% to 33.3% per annum

Where assets are identified as being impaired, that is when the recoverable amount has declined below the carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to reflect the decline in value.

Profit and ioss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss in the year of disposal.

Property, plant and equipment subject to finance lease agreements is capitalised at the cash cost equivalent and the corresponding
llabilities raised. Lease finance charges are charged to operating profit as they fall due, These assets are depreciated over their
expected useful lives an the same basis as owned assets, or, where shorter, the term of the lease.

Gther intangibie assets

Other intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initiaily recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date {which is regarded as their cost). Subsequent to initiat recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are recognised at cost less accumuiated amortisation and any recognised impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Acquired brands are considered to have an indefinite useful life and are not amoartised but are tested at least annuaily for
impairment and carried at cost less any recognised impairment,

An intangible asset is derecegnised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains
or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net dispesal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or foss when the asset s derecognised.



1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 'CONTINJED!

1.8

1.10

1.12

{mpairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At each statement of financial position date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whetber there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. ¥ any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment [css. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value n use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount is estimated to be less than the carrying amount the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable
amount with the impairments loss recognised immediately in profit or ioss.

Where an impairment Joss is subseqguently reversed, the carrying ameount of the asset 1s increased to the extent that the increased
carrying amaunt does not exceed the original carrying value. A reversal of an impairment loss 1s recognised immediately to profit
and loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods mainly comprises wholesale sales te independent retallers, and to a small degree retall sales
of stores owed by the group. Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of rebates, discounts and sales-related taxes,
and after eliminating sales within the group. Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed. If itis
probable that discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably, then the discount is recognised as a reduction
of revenue as the sales are recognised.

Marketing and service revenue consists of contributions towards promotional activities and 1s recognised when the associated
advertising and promotional activity has occurred.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference 1o the principal ouistanding and at an applicable interest rate,

Dividend income from investments s brought to account as and when the company is entitled to receive such dividend unless
the dividend 1s due from an entity which operates under severe long-term restrictions. The dividends from these entities are
accounted for on a cash basis.

Cost of sales
Cost of sales represents the net cost of purchases from suppliers, after discounts, rebates and mcentive allowances received
from suppliers, adjusted for opening and closing inventory.

fnventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost1s determined on the weighted average basis. Obsolete,
redundant and slow-moving inventory is identified and written down to estimated economic or realisable values. Net realisable
value represents the selling price less all estimated costs to be incurred i the marketing, sefling and distribution thereof.

When inventory is sold, the carrying amount is recognised to cost of sales. Any write-down of inventory to net reslisable value
and ali losses of inventory or reversals of previous write-downs are recognised in cost of sales.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result cf past events, where itis probable
that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be reguired to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made.

The group recognises a provision for onerous lease contracts when the expected benefits to be derived from non-cancellable
operating lease contracts are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the contract obkgations. The unavoidable contract
costs are applied over the rermaining periods of the relevant iease agreements.

THE SPAR GROUP LTD ANNUAL FINANCIAl STATEMENTS 2017

19



20

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED

1.13

1.14

1.15

Leased assets
Leased assets are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee, All other leases are classified as operating leases,

Rental recoveries receved under property head lease agreements are recognised on the straighl-line basis over the period of the
relevant lease These are offset agamst the head lease rental charge in operating expenditure.

Rental income in respect of operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Where the group is the lessee

Leases of assets under which a significant portion of risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Certain premises and other assets are leased. Payments made in respect of operating leases with
a fixed escalation clause are charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight line basis over the lease term. All
other lease payments are expensed as they become due. Minimum rentals due after year-end are reflected under commitments.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by
way of penalty 1s recognised as an expense and any unamortiged portion of the fixed escalation lease accrual is recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which termination takes place.

Where the group is the lessor

Portions of owner-occupied properties and leased properties are leased or subleased out under operating leases. The owner
occupied properties are included in property, plant and equipment in the statement of financial position. Rental income in respect
of operating leases with a fixed escalation clause is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrafts

Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdrafts are carried at cost and, if denominated i foreign currencies, are translated at
closing rates, Cash comprises cash on hand and cash at banks, Cash eguivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible ta known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts are
disclosed separately on the face of the statement of financial position.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity, iIncremental costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of ordinary shares are recognised as
a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

The purchase by the group of its own equity instruments and held m trust, results in the recognition of these shares repurchased
as treasury shares. The consideration paid 18 deducted from equiy. Where shares repurchased are subseguently scld, the
consideration received is included in equity attnbutable to owners of The SPAR Group Ltd, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction cost and the related tax effects,

Financiai instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilites are recognised in the staterment of financial position when the company or group
becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value,
which includes transaction costs for those financial assets not recognised at fair value through prefit or foss. Subseguent to
initial recognition, the instruments are measured as set out below:

Investments
Other equity investrents are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or Joss, and are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recogrised in profit or loss, Fair value 1s determined as described in note 39,

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents) are measured at their nominal
value less any impairment.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

The financial liabiities as described in note 28 are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses ansing on remeasurernent
recognised in profit or loss. A corresponding eguity reserve 1s recognised at the fair value of the liability on initial recognition, after
being set-off against the non-controlling interest.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities comprise borrowings and trade and other payables. Trade and other payables are stated at nominal
value and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate metheod.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 ZUNTINUE

1.16

Financial instruments '~~~

Derivative financial instruments

The group uses derivative financial instrurnents, principally forward exchange contracts to reduce its exposure to foreign
exchange nsk.

The group does not hold or issue derivatives for speculative purposes. Derivative financial instruments are recognised as assets
and habilities measured at their fair values at the statement of financial position date. Changes in their fair values are recognised
in profit or loss.

The group does not generally apply hedge accounting to it 'transactional’ foreign currency hedging relationships such as hedges
of forecast or committed transactions. It does, however, apply hedge accounting to its 'translational’ foreign currency hedging
relationshups where it is permissible to do s¢ under I1AS 39. When hedge zccounting is used, the relevant hedging relationships
are classified as a fair value hedge, a cash flow bedge, or in the case of a hedge of the group's net investment in a foreign
operation, a net investment hedge.

Changes in the far value of dervatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in profit or loss
immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.
The change in the fair vatue of the hedging instrument and the change in the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are
recognised i profit or loss in the line itermn relating to the hedged tem.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in profit or ioss, and 15 included in the 'other gains and losses' line item.

Amounts previously recogrised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the
periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged
forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the gains and lesses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are transferred from equity and included in the intial
measurerment of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial hability.

Dernvative financial instrunments are classed as current assets or liabilities unless they are in a designated hedging relaticnship
and the hedged itemn is classified as a non-current asset or liability.

Put arrangements over non-controlling interests

Written put options on the shares of a subsidiary held by non-controling interests give rise to a financial hability for the
present value of the redemption amount. The liability payable under the arrangement is initially recognised at fair value with a
cornesponding entry directly in equity. Subsequent changes te the fair value of the liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amounts are reported i the statement of financial position when
the group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and erther intends to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Employee benefits

Post-retirement medical aid provision

The company provides post-retirement healthcare benefits to certain of its retirees. The entitlement to these benefits 1s based
on qualifying employees remaining in service until retirement age, The projected unit credit method of valuation s used to
calculate the post-retirement medical aid obligations, which costs are accrued over the period of employment. Actuarial gains
and losses are recognised immediately in equity as other comprehensive income. These benefits are actuanally valued arnually.
The liabitity ts unfunded,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES  COMTINUFDD

117

.18

Employee benefits ~ortin =g,

Retirement benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit plans, the cost of prowviding benefits is determined using the projected unit credit methed, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting period,

The group presents the service costs and net interest income or expense in profit or loss in the line item ‘defined henefit plan
expenses’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs, Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains
and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiding (f applicable) and the return on plan assets {excluding interest) are
reflected immediately in the staternent of financial position with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive iIncome
in the peried in which they occur. Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income are refiected immediately in
retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recegnised in profit or loss in the period of a
plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit
liability or asset.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position represents the actual deficit
or surplus in the group’s definad benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calcuiation i limited te the present value of any
economic benefits avallable in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Share-based payments

Share option scheme

The group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees. These share-based payments are measured at
fair value at the date of the grant and are recogrised to profit or less on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. Fair value
is measured at grant date by use of a binormial model. The expected life used in the modet1s adjusted, based on management's
best estimate of the effect of non-market vesting conditions,

Broad-based black economic empowerment deal

The group's accounting for the BBBEE transaction complies with the requirements of IFRS 2 Share-based Payments The fair
value of options granted to retailer employees is recognised immediately to profit or loss. The fair value of options granted to
SPAR employees is recognised to profit or loss over the vesting period. Fair value is measured at grant date by use of a binomial
model. The expected life used in the model is adjusted, based an management’s best estimate of the effect of non-market
vesting conditions.

Conditional share plan

The group operates a conditional share plan under which it receives services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments of the company. In terms of the conditional share plan, the group has granted shares to executives, senior
management and key talent specifically identified in the form of performance share awards.

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair
value of the employee service receved in exchange for the grant of shares is recognised as an expense on a straight-line
hasis over the vesting pericd. with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based payment reserve. The total amount to be
expensed 1s determmed by reference to the fair value of shares granted, including any market performance conditions and
excluding the impact of any non-market performance vesting conditions. Non-market performance vesting conditions are
included in assumpticns regarding the number of shares granted that are expected 1o vest. At the end of each reporting period,
the group revises its estimates of the number of shares granted that are expected to vest, The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
correspending adjustment to the share-based payments reserve.

Taxation

Income taxation expense represents the sum of current taxation payable and deferred taxation. Current taxation 1s payable
based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit will differ from reported profit because it will exclude items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in ather years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The
group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been substantively enacted at the statement of financial
position date.

Deferred taxation 1s recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the statements of financial position Lability
method. Deferred taxation liabilities are generally recogrused for ali taxable temporary differences.
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1.18

1.21

Taxation ~- i o

Deferred taxation 1s calculated using taxation rates at the statement of financial position date and is charged or credited to the
statement of comprehensive income, except when H relates to items credited or charged directly to equity, In which case the
deferred taxation is dealt with in eguity.

Deferred taxation assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits wilt be avalable against which
future deductible temporary differences can be utitised. The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets are reviewed at each
statement of financial position date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
avaiable.

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are not recognised If the temporary difference arises frem goodwill, or from the initial
recognition {other than business combinations) of other assets and ligbilities in a transaction which affects neither the taxable
profit, nor the accounting profit,

Segmental reporting
The principal segments of the group have heen identified on a primary basis by geographical segment which is representative of
the internal reporting used for management purposes as well as the source and nature of business risks and returns,

All segment revenue and expenses are directly attributable to the segments. Segment assets include &ll operating assets used
by a segment. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities. These assets and liabilities are all directly attributabie to the
segments. All intrasegment transactions are eliminated on consoldation.

Normalised headline earnings

Normalised headline earnings is calculated as an additional performance indicator to take into account the effect of business-
defined exceptional items that have affected headline earnings duning the year. This 1s calculated as headline earnings
adjusted for fair value adjustments to financial liabilitres, foreign exchange gains or losses on financiatl liabilittes and business
acqguisition costs.,

Key management judgements
There are a number of areas where jJudgement is applied in the application of the accounting policies in the financial statements.

Significant areas of judgement have been identified as:

Taxation

The group is subject to taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide accruat
for iIncome taxes. There are many transactions and calculations during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. The group recognises hahilities for anticipated income tax positions based an best informed
estimates of whether additional income taxes will be due. Where the final income tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current incorne tax and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the penod in which such determination is made.

Estimation is also required of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities and their tax base.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences but, where there are deductible temporary differences,
management's judgement is reguired as to whether a deferred tax asset should be recognised based on the availability of future
taxable profits,

Business combinations

An acquisition 1S considered a business combination if the assets acquired and liabilities assumed constitute a business.
Management applies judgement in order to assess whether assets purchased constitutes a business by assessing the facts
and circumstances of the transaction. Management considers whether the purchase includes an integrated set of activities
(inputs and processes) that 1s capable of being managed and conducted in order to pravide & return. In instances where only an
asset such as a praperty, is purchased, with no related processes and inputs, this is treated as an acquisition of an asset rather
than a business. In instances such as the purchase of a store, which includes the employment of staff, and processes relating
to the running of the store that can be managed n order to provide a return, the assets acquired are treated as a business in
terms of IFRS 3.

Control over retail stores acquired

Note 33 detalls the acquisition of retail stores. In these acquisitions 100% of the assets of the business were acquired. The
directors of the company assessed whether or not the group has control over these retail stores based on whether the group has
the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the stores unilaterally. As no other party has the ability to direct the activities
of the business, the directors concluded that the group has control over the retail stores acquired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES  CONTINUED
1.21 Key management judgements o tnjad

Classification of SPAR Sri Lanka as a joint venture

SPAR Sri Lanka (Private) Ltd is a company whose legal form confers separation between the parties to the joint arrangement
and the company itself. Furthermore, there is no contractual arrangement or any other facts and circumstances that indicate
that the parties to the joint arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the kabilities of the joint arrangement.
Accordingly, SPAR Sri Lanka (Private} Ltd 1s classified as a joint venture of the group.

Significant influence over SPAR Zambia Lid

Note 15 describes SPAR Zambia Ltd as an associate entity of the group. The group holds 47.87% of the shareholding of the
entity and has the contractual right to appoint one out of six directors to the board of directors of the company, therefore the
group has significant influence over this entity. Considering the relative size and dispersion of the sharehaldings ewned by other
shareholders, the directars concluded that the group does not have a sufficiently dominant voting interest to direct the relevant
activities of SPAR Zambia Ltd, and therefore does not have control over this entity.

Significant influence over Tradefirm 15 (Pty) Ltd

Note 16 describes Tradefirm 16 (Pty) Ltd as an associate entity of the group. The group holds 43.8% of the shareholding of the
entity and has the contractual right to appoint two out of five directors to the board of directors of the company, therefore the
group has significant inflyence over this entity. Considenng the relative size and dispersion of the shareholdings owned by other
shareholders, the directors concluded that the group does not have a sufficiently dominant voting interest o direct the refevant
activities of Tradefirm 15 {Pty) Ltd, and therefore does not have control over this entity.

Intangibie assets

Intangible assets represent acquired brands. The acquired brands are established trademarks in the retail environment in Ireland
and the UK. History indicates that competitor movements had no significant impact on the sales generated by these brands. On
this basis. in addition to future prespects, management considered that the brands have indefinite useful lives.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

As required by the applicable accounting standards, management conducts annual impairment tests to assess the recoverabulity
of the carrying value of goodwill and indefinite useful life intangible assets. Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates. The value in use calculation requires the
entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise fram the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate to calculate
the present value, The impairment of indefirite useful life intangible assets is performed using the excess earnings and relief
from royalty models. Details of the assumptions used in the impairment tests are detailed in note 13,

Property, plant, equipment and vehicles
The directors have assessed the useful lives and residual values of assets based on historical trends and external valuations.

Provision for inventory obsolescence

The provision for net realisable value of inventory represents management's estimate of the extent to which inventery on hand
at the reporting date will be sold below cost. This estimate takes into consideration past trends, evidence of impairment at year-
end and an assessment of future saleability.

Allowance for doubtfui debts in trade receivables

The allowance for doubtful clebts in trade receivables represents management's estimate of the extent to which trade receivabtes
at the reporting date will not be subsequently recovered. This estimate takes into consideration past trends and makes an
assessment of additional risk factors, which are likely to impact recoverability.

Post-employment benefits
The post-employment benefits are valued by actuaries taking into aceount the assumptions as detailed in note 27.

Financial liabilities

This liability arises when new acquisitions have contraciual obligations enabling non-controfling interest shareholders to put
their shares back to the group at an agreed price. In arriving at the liability to the non-controlling interest of TIL JV Ltd (holding
company of the BWG Group) the agreed price 1s based on the future earnings, which need to be estimated and discounted
back te calculate the present value, This requires a high level of judgement. Management's expectation of the future profit
performance of TIL JV Ltd forms the basis in determining the fair value of the purchase obligation of the non-controiling interest.
The hability to the non-controling shareholders of SPAR tolding AG 1s calculated at the present value of the agreed future
purchase price. Detaiis of assumptions can be found in notes 28 and 39.

Share options
The share options are actuarially valued using a binomial model, with the input used i the model being based on management
estimates.
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Probability of vesting of rights to equily instruments granted in terms of conditional share plan
The cumulative expense recognised in terms of the group’'s conditional share plan reflects, in the opinion of the directors, the
number of rights to equity instruments granted that will ultimately vest. At each reporting date. the unvested rights are adjusted
by the number forfeited duning the year to reflect the actual number of instruments outstanding. Management 1s of the opinion
that this number, adjusted for future attntion rates and performance conditions, represents the most accurate estimate of the
nurnber of Instruments that will uttimately vest.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

There are no key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the statement of
financial position date that management have assessed as having a significant risk of causing matenal adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets and habilities within the next financial year.

GROUP COMPANY
Rmillien 2017 2016 2017 2016
REVENUE
Turnover 95 461.1 906885 62 551.1 59 837.6
Other income 1713.1 15388 610.9 557.1
Marketing and service revenues 17053 15315 564.8 5241
Other receipts 7.8 7.3 78 7.3
Dividends received — subsidiaries and asscciates 38.3 257
Total revenue 97 174.2 92 227.3 63 162.0 50 394.7
NET OPERATING EXPENSES
Net operating expenses include the following
Auditor’s remuneration
Audit fees 12.1 13.4 4.6 44
Other fees 5.9 4.8 3.6 45
Total auditor's remuneration 18.0 18.2 8.2 8.9
Operating lease charges
Plant, equipment and vehicles 78.3 715 6.5 a3
Immovable property 6320 471.6 101.0 75.0
Lease rentals payable 1546.4 12336 937.3 8067
Sub-lease recoveries {914.4) {762,0) {836.3) (725.7)
Total operating lease charges 710.3 543.1 107.5 83.3
Employee benefits expense
Past-employment benefits (refer to note 27) 248.3 1941 1314 119.6
Post-retirement medical aid 17.6 146 17.6 14.6
Defined contribution plans 1295 117.8 1138 105.0
Defined benefit plans 101.2 61.7
Share-based payments {refer note 38) 333 11.8 33.3 418
Other employee benefits 3898.0 3186.0 1567.2 1490.4
Total employment benefits expense 4179.6 3421.9 17319 1651.8
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

4. BBBEE TRANSACTIONS
In compliance with IFRS, the two BBBEE trusts are consclidated by The SPAR Greup Ltd. To the extent that parhicipants have not
been paid out at year-end, The SPAR Group Ltd has consolidated the halance owing to the participants and the carresponding cash
resources stiif on hand.

The trusts are currently in the process of paying aver to the participants their cash entitlements. At year-end these participants had
not yet been settled for various reasons

GROUP COMPANY
Rmillion 2017 2016 2007 2016
The SPAR BBREFE Employee Trust share-based payment charge 10.7 107
Legal and other costs 0.9 10.2 0.9 10.2
Total 0.9 20.9 0.9 20.9
The SPAR

BBBEE The SPAR

Retailer BEBEE
Employee Employee 2017 2016
Rmillion Trust Trust Total Total

Included in trade and other payabies:

Amounts due to BBBEE participants 0.7} {42.0) (42.7) {307.2}
Included in cash and cash equivalents — guilds and trusts:
(refer to note 23)

BBBEE cash resources 0.7 42.0 42.7 3072

Total - - - —
GROUP COMPANY
Rmillion 2017 2076 2017 2018
5. OTHER NON-OPERATING ITEMS

Remeasurement of financial instruments 51.6 (1.0) 51.6 0.2
Fair value adjustment to financial liability 51.6 51.6
Fair value adjustment to investment in GRH * 0.2 * 0.2
Fair value adjustment to investments in shares and bonds * (1.2} *
Capital items 3.0 255 - 2.2
Impairment of goodwill * 49 * 49
Loss/(profit) on disposal of associate interests * 0.7 * {7.8)
Profit on disposal of business * (1.1} * {1.1)
Business acquisition costs {refer to note 33) 3.0 21.0 6.2
Total other non-operating items 54.6 245 51.6 2.4

~ Reclassified to net operating expenses in the current financial year



GROUP COMPANY

Rmillion 2017 2016 2017 2016
NET INTEREST

Interest income

Bank deposits 64.5 537 62.6 51.5
Loans 8.6 20 83 1.7
Cverdue debtors 39.4 374 356.0 29.8
Other 10.7 53 0.6 0.3
Total interest income 123.2 98.4 106.5 83.3
Interest expense

Secutity deposits {6.0) (4.9) (6.0} (4.9)
Loans (79.3) {68.8) (0.8)
Bank overdraft (22.7) {32.2) (20.5) (3171
Other {5.2) (4.5) {5.2) (4.6)
Total interest expense {113.2) {110.4) (31.7) (42.0)
Finance costs including foreign exchange gains and losses

Finance costs of financial fiabilities {74.3) {104.0) (60.1) (96.3)
Foreign exchange gains and {losses) on financial liabilities 9.9 (2.5) {(27.7} 1.7
Total finance costs {64.4) {106.5) (87.8) (94.6)
Net interest expense {54.4) {118.5) (13.0) (63.3)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current taxation

— current year 626.0 605.8 548.9 54972
— prior year 5.2 04 0.8 01
Deferred taxation

— current year 24.7 11.0 124 1.
— prior year (12.6) 6.2 (2.3} (3.4)
withholding income tax 1.3 08 0.5 0.5
Total income tax expense 644.6 6242 560.3 5575
Reconciliation of effective taxation rate

South African current income tax rate at 28% (2016: 28%) (%) 28.0 28.0 28.0 28.0
Dividend income (%) (0.5) (0.3)
Other exempt income and non-deductible expenses (%) 2.1 1.0 1.3

Income tax allowances (%) (0.2) .1 (0.2) 0.1}
withholding income tax (%) 0.1

Prior year income tax (over)/under provision (%) (0.3) 0.3 (0.1) 0.1
Effect of foreign income tax rates (%) (3.5) (3.4)

Assessed losses utilised (%) (0.3)

Effective rate of taxation (%) 26,2 255 28.5 27.5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings per share is calculated using the weighted average number of ordinary shares {net of treasury shares) in1ssue during the
year. In the case of basic earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares (net of treasury shares} in issue during
the year was 192 555 203 (2016: 173 703 184). In respect of diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary
shares {net of treasury shares) was 193 807 170 {2016: 181 582 889).

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary shareholders 1s based on the following data.

GROUP

2017 2016
Earnings
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share {profit for the year
attributable to ordinary shareholders). Rmiblion 1820.1 18150
Earmngs per share
Basic {cents) 945.2 10100
Diluted (cents) 939.1 999.5
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (net of treasury shares) for the purposes
of basic earnings per share {'000) 192 555 179703
Effect of diluted potential ordinary shares:
Share options and BBBEE shares {'000) 1252 1890
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (net of treasury shares) for the purposes
of diluted earnings per share (000} 193 807 181 593
Rmillion

8. HEADLINE EARNINGS

Profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders 1820.1 18150
Adjusted for:
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 139 15.0
— Gross 15.7 179
- Tax effect (1.8) (2,9
Profit on disposal of assets held for sale {7.5) (3.0
Fair value adjustment to assets heid for sale 1.2 1.4
Impairment of goodwiil 9.3 49
Loss on disposal of associate interests 07
Profit on disposal of businesses (2.8) (1.1
Headline earnings 1834.2 18329
Adjusted for exceptional items:
Fair value adjustment to financial habilities [refer to note 39) 51.6
Fareign exchange (gains)/losses on financial liabilities {refer to note 39} (9.9) 25
Business acquisition costs 3.0 21.0
Normalised headline eamings 1878.9 1 856.4
Headline earmings per share:
Basic (cents) 9525 10200
Diuted (cents) 946.4 10094
Normalised headline earnings per share (cents) 9758 10330

Normalised headline earnings is calculated as an additional performance indicator, to take into account the effect of business-defined
exceptional items that have affected headline earnings during the year.
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GROUP COMPANY

Rmillion 2017 2016 2017 2016

DIVIDENDS PAID
2016 Final dividend declared 15 November 2016

~ paid 12 December 2016 789.6 6808 789.6 680.8
2017 intenm diidend declared 30 May 2017

— pad 26 Jure 2017 462.1 471.8 462.1 471.8
Total dividends 1251.7 1152.6 1251.7 11526

2076 Final dividend per share declared 15 November 2016

- paid 12 December 2016 (cents) 410.0 393.0 410.0 393.0
2017 interim dividend per share declared 30 May 2017

- paid 26 June 2017 (cents) 240.0 2550 240,0 2550
Total dividends per share {cents) 650.0 648.0 650.0 648.0

The final dividend for the year ended 30 September 2017 of 435 cents per share declared on 14 November 2017 and payabie
on 11 December 2017 has not been accrued.

SEGMENT REPORTING
Segment accounting policies are consistent with those adopted for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

The principal segments of the group have been identified on a primary basis by geographical segment which is representative of the
internal reporting used for management purposes as well as the source and nature of business risks and returns.

The Chief Executive Officer {the Chief Operating Decision Maker) is of the opinion that the operations of the indidual distribution
centres within Southern Africa are substantially similar to one ancther and that the risks and returns of these distribution centres
are likewise similar. The risks and returns of the Ireland and Switzerland operations are not considered to be similar to those within
Southern Africa or each other,

As a result, the geographical segments of the group have been identified as Southern Africa, Ireland and Switzerland. All segment
revenue and expenses are directly attributable to the segments, Segment assets and ligbilities include all operating assets and
liahilties used by a segment, with the exception of inter-segment assets and liabilities, and IFRS adjustments made by segments 1o
their management report for the purposes of IFRS compliance. These assets and liabilities are ali directly attributable to the segments.

Analysis per reportable segment;

Switzerland

Southern IAS 19 Consolidated
Rmillion Aftica Ireland Switzerfand adjustment Total
2017
Statement of profit or loss
Total revenue 65074.4 208903 112095 97 174.2
Operating profit 20053 508.2 952 {26.2) 25825
Profit before tax 1933.0 465.8 92.1 (26.2) 2464.7
Interest income 109.7 11.1 2.4 1232
interest expense 33.8 50.5 289 113.2
Depreciatian 194.2 203.2 260.3 657.7
Statement of financial position
Total assets 14 076.8 92723 4861.5 282106
Total habilities 10 070.8 7364.7 3.7 408.4 21 635.6
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11,

12.

SEGMENT REPORTING - 7.7 "ai-D2
Analysis per reportable segment: (continued)
Switzertand
Southern I1AS 19 Consolidated
Rmillion Africa Irefand  Switzerland  adjustment Total
2016
_ Statement of profit or loss
" Total revenue 82 232.3 23471.5 b 5235 822273
Operating profit 2057.3 4878 450 (12.8) 2577.3
Profit before tax 2001.2 431.7 19.1 {12.8) 24392
Interest income 86.8 101 1.5 ¢8.4
Interest expense 423 51.4 16.7 110.4
Depreciation 174.3 2139 1432 531.4
Statement of financial position
Total assets 13521.2 87415 50931 273558
Total liabilities 9682.4 7 468.4 40459 6162 217129
GROUP
Furniture,
fittings,
Freehold plant,
land and Leasehold  equipment
Rmillion buildings buildings and vehicles Total
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Carrying value at 30 September 2015 15559 46.7 16187 3221.3
Cost 1653.2 50.0 27710 44743
Accumulated depreciation (97.3) (3.3} (11624} {1 2563.0)
Additions 104.7 2.5 730.0 837.2
Expansicns 103.1 19 354.4 4589 4
Replacements 1.6 06 375.6 377.8
Additions through business acquisitions 1704.8 76 11897 29021
Disposals at net book value (9.7} (34.0} (43.7)
Disposal through sale of business (8.9} (89)
Depreciation {1.9) (0.8 (528.7) (531.4)
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences (117.0) {0.9) {95.5) (213.4)
Reclassified as assets held for sale (2.9) {2.9)
Carrying value at 30 September 2016 3236.8 55.1 Z2868.4 6160.3
Analysed as follows:
Cost 3333.0 59.1 4434.3 7826.4
Accumulated depreciation (96.2) (4.0) (1 565.9) {1 666.1)
Additions 322.5 2.5 850.8 1175.8
Expansions 3201 2.5 536.8 859.4
Replacements 2.4 314.0 316.4
Additions through business acquisitions 15.1 15.1
Disposals at net book value (47.6) (1.0} (48.3) (96.9)
Disposal through sale of business (6.4) (6.4)
Depreciation 1.7 (1.7 (654.3) {657.7)
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences {31.6) 0.9 (6.4) (37.1)
Reclassified as agsets held for saje 0.8 0.8
Carrying value at 30 September 2017 3 478.4 55.8 3019.7 6 553.9
Analysed as follows.
Cost 3576.1 61.6 49659 8603.6
Accumulated depreciation (97.7) (5.8) (1946.2) (2 049.7)




12.

COMPANY

Furniture,
fittings,
Freehold plant,
land and  Leasehold equipment
Rmillion buildings buildings and vehicles Total
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1778 TN F
Carrying value at 30 September 2015 10531 8.5 788.2 1849.8
Cost 1136.6 11.4 16799 28279
Accumulated depreciation (83.5} (2.9) (891.7) {978.1)
Additions 74.3 1.3 254 8 330.4
Expansions 743 1.3 154.2 229.8
Replacements 100.6 1800.6
Adchitions through business acquisitions 13.7 13.7
Disposals at net book value 8.2 (8.2)
Disposal through sale of businesses (8.9) (8.9)
Reclassified as assets held for sale (2.9) (2.9)
Depreciation 0.1) (166.2) {166.3)
Carrying value at 30 September 2016 11274 9.7 870.5 2007.6
Analysed as follows:
Cost 12109 12.7 18774 3101.0
Accumulated depreciation (83.5) (3.0) (1 006.9) {1093.4)
Additions 2420 0.4 310.2 552.6
Expansions 242.0 04 2175 459.9
Replacements 92.7 92.7
Additions through business acquisitions 13.4 13.4
Disposals at net book value (39.0) (7.0) {46.0)
Disposal through sale of businesses {6.4) (6.4)
Reclassified as assets held for sale 08 0.8
Depreciation 0.3) {187.2) (187.5)
Carrying value at 30 September 2017 13304 9.8 994.3 2 334.5
Analysed as follows:
Cost 14139 13.1 2139.8 3566.8
Accumulated depreciation {83.5) (3.3) (1 145.5) {1232.3)

The directors’ valuation of freehold land and buildings at 30 September 2077 is R4 §54.4 million (2016: R4 615.1 million). The valuation
is based on net yields of 5.7% — 10.0% {2016: 5.7% — 12.0%), country dependent. The carrying value of fixed property encumbered as

security for borrowings set outin note 29 is R1 606.9 million (2016: 81 547.0 million).

THE SPAR GROUP LTD ANMNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMFENTS 2017

31



32

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

13.

GROUP COMPANY
Rmillion 2017 2016 2017 2016
GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill
Balance at beginning of year 2 315.1 15947 4215 388.7
Impairment (9.3) (4.9) (6.8) (4.9
Goodwill derecognised on disposal of business (38.8) (38.8)
Reclassified from/(to) assets held for sale 1.5 (4.3) 1.5 (4.3)
Business combination 122.5 737.7 80.6 42.0
Fereign exchange translation 37.3 8.1
Balance at end of year 2428.3 231581 458.0 421.5
Analysed as follows:
Cost 24525 23300 469.7 426.4
Accumulated impairment (24.2) (14.9) (11.7) (4.9)
CGUs with significamt goodwill:
SPAR Lowveld distribution centre 245.6 2456 2456 245.6
TIL JV Ltd {BWG) 12194 11895
GCL 2016 Lid (Gilletts) 327.7 3125
SPAR Holding AG 315.9 3085
Retall stores 319.7 2590 2124 175.9
Closing balance of goodwill 2428.3 23151 458.0 4215
intangible assets
Balance at begmning of year 1693.2 16868
Fereign exchange translation 40.7 6.4
Balance at end of year 1733.9 16932 - -
Analysed as follows
Cost 17339 1693.2
Total goodwill and intangible assets 4162.2 408.3 458.0 421.5
Analysed as follows:
Cost 4186.4 40232 469.7 426.4
Accumulated impairment {24.2) (14.9) {11.7) (4.9}

Goodwill and indefinite useful life intangible assets are not amortised but tested for impairment annually.

Refer to note 33 for details on new business combinations during the year.




13. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (LOMIINLLIL,
Summary of the goodwill and indefinite useful life intangible assets by cash-generating unit (CGU) and related assumptions applied
for impairment testing are as follows

13.1

13.2

Goodwill impairment testing
Goodwill is allocated to the group's cash-generating units. The recoverable amount of a CGU 1s determined based on the value
in use calculations.

The value in use discounted cash flow modei was applied in assessing the carrying value of goodwill. Cash flows were projected
over the next five-year period based on financial budgets or forecasts approved by management,

GROUP

2017 2016
The following assumptions were applied in determining the value in use of the
Southern Afrnican entities:
Discount rate (%) 1.7 118
Sales growth rate (%) 6.0 6.0
Terminal value growth rate {%) 3.0 3.0
The following assumptions were applied in determining the value in use of the
goodwill for Irish and UK entities:
Discount rate (%) 10.0 10.0
Sales growth rate (%)
Terminal value growth rate (%) 2.0 20
The following assumptions were appled in determining the value in use of the
Swiss entity
Discount rate (%) 3.9
Sales growth rate % (1.1)-1.0
Terminal value growth rate (%) 1.0

Discount rates are consistent with external sources. and sales growth rates and terminal value growth rates reflect
past experience,

intangible assets impairment testing

intangible assets represent acouired brands. The acquired brands are established trademarks inthe retail environment in ireland
and the UK. History indicates that competitor movements had no significant impact on the sales generated by these brands. On
this basis, in addition to future prospects, management considered that the brands have indefinite useful hives.

The carrying value of brands relating to the BWG CGU amount to R1 733.8 million {2016: R1 693.2 mullion),
The recoverable amount of the BWG CGU has been determined based on a value in use excess earnings calculation,

The key assumpticns below have been applied to calculate the recoverable amount of the BWG CGU:

GROUP
2017 2016
Expected return on assets (%) 16.7 6.7
Multipker rate (%) 4.8 48

The expected return is based on managements expected return on assets in the past.
The multipker 1s based on management's forecast future growth expectations,

Brands with indefinite useful lives arising on the acquisition of Londis are now included in the BWG CGU far impairment testing
as these have been incorporated into the BWG business.

THE SPAR GROUP LTD ANNUAL FINANCIAT STATEMENTS 2017

33



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

Issued share capital Effective holding Cost of investment
Principal place 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
of business Rmillion Rmillion % % Rmillion Rmillion
4. INVESTMENT iN SUBSID{ARIES

Subsidiary*

SAH Ltd™ (registered in the

Isle of Man} Switzerland 685.4 685.4 100 100 685.4 685.4

TIL JV Ltd* (registered in the

Isle of Man} Ireland 0.1 0.1 80 86 798.6 798.6

SPAR Scuth Africa (Pty) Ltdiz Sauth Africa 100 100

SPAR Namibia (Pty) Ltd*

(registered 1N Namibia)** Namibia 100 100

The SPAR Group (Botswana)

{(Pty) Ltd" (registered in Botswana)™  Botswana 100 100

SPAR Mozambique Limitada!

{registered in Mozambigque)** Mozambigue 100 106

Sun Village Supermarket (Pty) Ltd™  South Africa a0 90

SPAR PE. Property (Pty) Ltd® South Africa 11.5 1.5 100 100 2.3 2.3

SaveMor Products (Pty) Ltd " South Africa 100 100

SPAR Academy of Learning (Pty) Ltd® South Africa 100 100

Nelspruit Wholesalers (Pty) Ltdi$ South Africa 100 100

SPAR Retall Stores (Pty) Ltd™ South Africa 100 100 181.2 181.2

Kaphan Trading (Pty) Ltd™" South Africa 100 100 15.0 15.0

Rubean Trading (Pty) Ltd- South Africa 100 100

SPAR Mopani Rural Hub (Pty) Ltd”  South Africa 100 100

Annison 45 (Pty) Ltd™ South Africa 60 60

SPAR Ikhwezi Rural Hub (Pty) Ldi South Africa 100 100

Clusten 45 (Pty) Ltd South Africa 100 100

Wespin 52 {Pty) Ltct™ South Africa 100 100

Knowles Shopping Centre

Investments (Pty) Lid™ South Africa 100

Consolidated entties*»s+

The SPAR Guild of Southern afnca ™™™ South Africa

The Build 1t Guild of Southern

Africait™™* South Africa

The SPAR Group Ltd Employee

Share Trust (2004)1 South Africa

The SPAR BBBEE Employee Trustt®?  South Africa

The SPAR BBBEE Retailer Employee

Trust! South Africa

Total 1682.5 16825

*  The SPAR Group Ltd Fmployee Share Trust (2004), The SPAR BBBEE fmployee Trust and The SPAR BBBEE Retarer Fmployee Trust have
28 February as their year-end Al other companies have a 30 September year-end.

Al legal entities are incorporated in the Republic of South Africa unless otherwise indicated.

wex NON-profit companies over which the company exercises control

===+ These eniities are consolidated as the group has effective control aver these entities dise to the group’s controf over the board

T Operating company o entity

= Dormant

“ o Property owring cormpany
Hoiding company



GROUP COMPANY

Rmillion 207 2016 2017 2016
INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Baiance at beginning of year g4 324 32.4 22.8
Share of (losses}/ income for the year (8.8) 49

Investment in associates and joint ventures 69.9 69.9

Disposal of investments (8.5)

Loans advanced to associates 23.8 13.4 23.8 13.4
Repayment of loans during the year {4.5) (3.8} {4.5) (3.8}
Payment of dividends {1.5)

Balance at end of year 117.3 38.4 121.6 32.4

Summarnsed financial statements of the group's share of associates:

GROUP

2017 2016
Statement of profit or loss
Revenue 139.1 736
(Losses)/income for the year attributabie to ordinary sharehciders (8.8} 49
Statement of financial position
Total assets 88.6 29.5
Total habilities {65.7) (22.5)
Net assets 229 7.0

The asscciates have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the group. These are private
companies and no quoted market prices are available for its shares.
Details of the group's shareholding and carrying value by associate:

Shareholding
in associates and

joint ventures GROUP COMPANY
2007 2016 2007 2016 2007 2016
% % Rmillion Rmillion Rmitiion Rmithon

SPAR Harare (Pvt} Ltd (associate) 35.0 35.0
Gezaro Retailers (Pty) Ltd (associate) 40.0 40.0 14.7 17.7 18.1 227
Monteagle Merchandising
Services (Pty) Ltd (associate) 50.0 50.0 245 207 9.7 9.7
SPAR Zambra Ltd (associate) 47.9 438 56.6
SPAR SL (Private) Ltd ot venture) 50.0 14.4 17.2
Tradefirm 15 {Pty) Ltd {associate) 43.8 19.9 20.0
Total 117.3 38.4 121.6 32.4

The greup has a 35% shareholding in SPAR Harare (Pvt} Ltd, which is no longer operational. The entire investment in this asscciate
has been written down.

The group has a 40% shareholding in Gezaro Retailers (Pty) Ltd, which owns and operates the Zevenwacht SUPERSPAR in Kuils River.

The group has & 50% shareholding in Monteagle Merchandising Services [Pty) Lid, the principal activities of which are merchandising
SErvICES.

On 1 December 2076, the group invested in a 47.87% shareholding of SPAR Zambsa Ltd, which owns and operates eight SPAR stores
in Zambia.

In December 2016, the group invested in 50% of the equity of SPAR SL (Private) Ltd, which is a joint venture based in Sr Lanka, being
set up in order to carry on a SPAR wholesale and retail business.

Cn 13 June 2017, the group nvested in a 43.8% shareholding of Tradefirm 15 (Pty) Ltd. which owns and operates Eastmans
SUPERSPAR end TOPS in Durban.
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16.

17.

GROUP COMPANY
Rmillion 2007 2016 2017 2016
OTHER INVESTMENTS
Balance at beginning of year 54.2 23 1.6 23
Additional investments during the year 3.2 3.2
Additions through business combinations 56.2
Fair value adjustments 1.8 1.0 (0.2)
Disposals (0.5} {0.5)
Foreign exchange differences {1.5) (3.8)
Balance at end of year 571.7 54.2 4.8 1.6
Analysed as follows.
Group Risk Heldings (Pty) Ltd 2.4 16 2.4 1.6
Hypo Vorarlberg bank security deposit 529 52.6
Investrment in Dendostax (Pty) Ltd 14 14
Investment in The SA SME Fund Ltd 1.0 1.0
Total 57.7 54.2 4.8 1.6

Group Risk Holdings (GRH) 1s a South African based holding company which wholly owns an offshore captive insurance company,
being Group Risk Mutual (GRM) in the Isle of Man.

As at the 2017 financial year-end, the group has an 8.0% (2016 5.3%) shareholding in GRH.
FPlease see financial mstruments accounting policy note,

The investment held at Hypo Vorarlberg bank consists of a rental security deposit. This is a portfolio of shares and bonds which 1s
periodically fair valued.

The investrment in Dendostax (Pty} Ltd is a 14.3% shareholding in the company which holds the property from which Eastmans
SUPERSPAR and TOPS operate.

The investment in The SA SME Fund Ltd amounts to aninitial subscription to one million shares in this entity.

GROUP COMPANY

Rmillion 2017 2016 2017 2016
OPERATING LEASE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Operating lease recervables 186.7 163.9 195.5 156.4
Less current portion {60.7) (63.4) (60.7) {63.4)
Non-current operating lease receivables 125.4 100.5 134.8 87.0
Operating lease payables 2042 181.6 204.2 154.6
Less current portion (62.8) (65.6) (62.8) {65.6}
Non-current operating lease payables 141.4 116.0 141.4 89.0

The group has entered into various non-canceliable operating lease agreements in respect of rented premises. Other than for
those premises occupied by the group, the premises are sub-let to SPAR retailers. Leases are contracted for penods of up to
10 years, some with renewal options. Rentals comprise minimum menthly payments and additional payments based on turnover levels.
Refer to note 35.

The above lease recevables and payables are attributable to operating leases with fixed escalation charges which are recognised
in profit and ioss on the straight-line basis, which is consistent with the prior year.



18.

19.

GROUP COMPANY

Rmillion 2017 2016 2017 2016
LOANS

Retailer icans 522.6 264.3 262.6 1815
Advance to The SPAR Group Ltd Employee Share Trust (2004) 16.1 187
Loan to Group Risk Holdings (Pty) Ltd 0.5 0.3 0.5 0.3
Total 523.1 264.6 279.2 200.5
Less curient portion {116.9) (46.8) (35.3) (51.9)
Non-current loans 406.2 2178 243.9 148.6

18.1 Retailer loans are both secured and unsecured, bear interest at variable floating rates and have set repayment terms.

18.2 The advance to The SPAR Group Ltd Employee Share Trust (2004} is unsecured. bears no interest and has no get repayment
terms. The company advanced money to the trust to enable 1t to finance the repurchase of the company's shares (refer note 25).
This advance constitutes aloan and a contribution. The ioan portion is recoverable from the trust upon exercise of share options to
the extent of the sum of eption strike prices of options exercised. The contribution portion will be the difference between the
cost price of treasury shares and the option strike prices of the equivalent number of treasury shares utilised to satisfy option
holders who exercise their option rights.

GROUP COMPANY
Rmillion 2007 2016 2017 2016
DEFERRED TAXATION
Asset
Deferred taxation asset analysed by major category
Property, plant and equipment (180.2) {165.2) (180.4) (168.0)
Provisions, claims and prepayments 195.9 196,1 184.5 185.3
Balance at end of year 18.7 30.9 4.1 17.3
Reconciliation of deferred taxation asset:
Balance at beginning of year 309 34.0 17.3 228
Profit or loss effect (12.0) (5.3) (10.0) 7.7
Other comprehensive incoeme effect (3.2) 2.2 (3.2) 2.2
Balance at end of year 15.7 30.9 4.1 17.3
Liabhility
Deferred 1axation lability analysed by major category:
Property, plant and equipment and intangibie assets (439.1) (448.9)
Defined benefit obligations 129.3 2001
Provisions and cther (51.4) (41.9)
Balance at end of year (361.2) (290.7} - -
Reconciliation of deferred taxation liability
Balance at beginning of year {290.7) (215.1} - -
Business acquisition (147.0)
Profit or loss effect 0.1 (1.7)
Exchange rate translation (3.3) 8.7
Retirement benefit fund prior year gross-up (refer to note 27) 437
Other comprehensive income effect (67.3) 30.7
Balance at end of year {361.2) (290.7) - -
Total net (liability)/asset {345.5) {259.8) 4.1 173
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20.

21.

GROUP COMPANY
Rmillion 2017 2016 2017 2016
INVENTORIES
Merchandise 3884.1 38780 19180 18028
Less provision for obsolescence (67.7) {67.1) (27.7) (26.0}
Total inventories 3816.4 38105 18903 17768
Shrinkages and damages wnitten off 131.8 99.9 34.7 36.3
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade recevables 10002.5 98193 6901.0 67162
Allowance for doubtful debts (602.7) (654.9) (169.4) (161.8)
Net trade recevables 93998 91644 6731.6 6554.4
Other receivables 14145 1379.6 894.7 758.6
Total trade and other receivables 10814.3 105440 7626.3 73130
The other receivables balance includes loans made by
The SPAR Guild of Southern Africa to SPAR retad members.
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:
Balance at beginning of year (654.9) (582.3) (161.8) (153.7)
Allowance raised during the year {265.1) {246.8) (85.1) (63.9)
Allowance reversed during the year 322.7 196.7 775 51.8
Business acquisition (25.7)
Exchange rate translation (5.4) 3.8
Balance at end of year {602.7) (654.9) (169.4) (161.8)
irrecoverable debts written off net of recoveries 190.4 139.2 89.4 65.0

Trade receivables

The group provides trade credit facilities to SPAR and Build it members. The recoverability of amounts owing by members to the
group 15 regularly reviewed and assessed on an individual basis. The allowance for doubtful debts represents management's estimate
of the extent to which trade receivables at the reporting date will not be subsequently recovered. This estimate takes intc consideration
past trends and makes an assessment of additional risk factors, which are likely to impact recoverability. To the extent considered
irrecoverable, debts are written off. It 1s a prerequisite for appropriate security to be obtained from retailers to reduce the level of credd
exposure, Standard credit terms granted to members are as follows:

SPAR

Ex-warehouse supply - 19/25 days from weekly staterment
Ex-direct suppler delivery — 25431 days from weekly staterment
Buid 1t

Ex-direct supplier delivery — 38/48 days from weekly staternent

Included in trade receivables are debtors with a net carrying amount of R515.0 million (2016: R512.1 million} which are past due at a
group level and R358.2 milhon (2016: R288.7 million) at a company level. The group has not provided for these amounts as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality of the debts and the amounts are considered recoverable. The directors consider the
carrying ameunt of trade and other receivables to approximate their fair value.



22,

23.

24.

GROUP COMPANY

Rmillion 2017 2016 2007 2016
TAXATION PAID

Payable/{receivable] at beginning of year 795 9.0 28.5 (0.2)
Business acquisition (refer to note 33) 59

Exchange rate translaticn 23 2.1}

Charge to profit or loss (refer to note 7) 632.5 €07.0 550.2 5498
Other comprehensive income effect (1.0 (11.0)
Net payable at end of year (87.7) (79.5) (15.4) (28.5)
Total taxation paid 626.6 529.3 563.4 510.1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/OVERDRAFTS

For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash eguivaients include cash on hand and in banks and nvestments
in money market mnstruments, net of outstanding bank overdrafts, The group separately discloses the SPAR, guilds’
and trusts' bank balances. Guild balances compnse retaler funds held in trust and other cash deposits atinbutable to
The SPAR Guild of Southern Africa, and The Build it Guild of Scuthern Africa. Deposits received by The SPAR Guild of Southern Africa
from the SPAR retail members are included in other payahles. Trust balances comprise cash on hand at year-end held by the BBBEE
trusts pending payment to beneficiaries (refer to note 4). The hahility to the beneficiaries is included in trade and other payables.

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flow can be reconciled to the related tems
in the statement of financial position as follows.

GROUP COMPANY

Rmillion 2017 2016 2017 2076
Bank halances — guilds 1322 1210

Bank halances — trusts 42,7 307.2

Bank balances ~ quilds and trusts 174.9 428.2 - -
Bank balances — SPAR 1565.6 16118 409.3 5956
Bank overdrafts — SPAR {268.5) (507.1)

Net cash balances 1472.0 15329 409.3 595.6
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Freehold properties heid for saie (24.1) 14.0 327

Assets acquired with ADM Londis plc for disposal (24.2) 1233 1208

Assets related to retail stores {24.3) 3.7 7.2 3.7 72
Assets held for sale 141.0 160.7 3.7 7.2

24.1 The group intends to dispose of numercus freehcld properties it no longer utilises in Ireland and the UK in the next 12 months.
A search is underway for buyers.

No impairment loss was recognised at 30 September 2017 as the directors of the company expect that the fair value {(estimated
based on recent market prices of similar properties in similar locations and the average of recent rental returns yielded} less
costs to selt 1s higher than its carrying amount. Disposals during the current year pertain to property which was sold for net
proceeds of R25.5 million.

GROUP COMPANY
Reconciliation of freehold properties held for sale 2017 2016 2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year 32.7 328 - -
Disposals {18.0) {0.2)
Translation differences 0.7} 0.1
Balance at end of year 14.0 327 - -

THE SPAR GROUP LTD ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2017

39



40

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

24,

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE -(-.»7if .kl
24,2 The group acquired a number of freehold properties and legacy debtors, as a part of the ADM Londis ple business combination

24.3

in 2015. The group intends to dispose of numerous freehold properties 1t no longer utilises 0 the next 12 months. A search is
underway for buyers. The debtors are expected to be collected over a remaining twe-year period. Cisposals duning the current
year pertain to debtors which were disposed of for proceeds of R0.4 million.

GROUP COMPANY

Reconciliation of assets acquired with ADM Londis plc

Rmillion 2017 2016 2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year 120.8 144.2 - -
Fair value adjustment (0.4)

Disposals (0.48) (23.9)

Transtation differences 2.9 1.9

Balance at end of year 123.3 120.8 - -

As at 30 September 2016, the group intended te dispose of the Kragga Kamma Kwikspar and TOPS stores, and the
Crazy J's Vincent group of five liquor stores. These stores were purchased during 2016 and immediately reclassified as held
for sale, as agreements were in place to sell these stores within the next year. The sale of the Crazy J's Vincent group of liquor
stores was not concluded in the current financial year. These were imparred to their realisable value, and transferred to property,
piant and eguipment and goodwill. The effective date of the sale of the Kragga Kamma Kwikspar and TOPS stores has been
extended to 1 December 2017. These stores make up the remaining balance of R3.7 million.

GROUP COMPANY
Rmillion 2017 2016 2017 2016
Assets of stores classified as held for sale
Balance at beginning of year 7.2 7.2
Transfers (to)/from assets {2.3) 7.2 (2.3) 7.2
Impairment {1.2) (1.2)
Balance at end of year 3.7 7.2 3.7 7.2
25, STATED CAPITAL
25.3 Authorised
250 000 000 (2016: 250 000 000) ordinary shares
Issued and fully paid
192 602 355 (2016: 192 602 355) ordinary shares
Rmillion 2231.5 22315 22315 22315
Number of shares
Ordinary shares
Outstanding at beginning of year 192602355 173261662 192602355 173261662
Issue of shares through accelerated bookbuild offering 11891892 11 891 892
Converted from redeemable convertible preference shares
during the year 335568 33558
Converted from redeemable convertible preference shares
at vesting T 415243 7415 243
Outstanding at end of year 192602 355 192602355 192602355 192607 355




25,

GROUP COMPANY

Rmillion 2017 2016 2017 2016

STATED CAPITAL ~ "'l &0

251

25.2

Authorised - -

Redeemable convertible preference shares

Balance at beginning of year - 18 702 349 - 18 702 349
Converted into ordinary shares during the year (55 450) (10379134
Converted into ordinary shares at vesting {10 323 684}

Redeemed at par value (8323215) {(8323215)

Balance at end of year - — — —

All authonsed and issued shares of the same class rank pan passu in every respect. The unissued shares of the company are
under the control of the directors to the extent that such shares may be required to satisfy option holders' requirements. This
authority will expire at the forthcoming annuat general meeting.

There are no conversion or exchange nghts in respect of the ordinary shares and a vanation of share nghts requires approval by
a special resolution from the shareholders at a general meeting in accordance with the Memorandum of incorporation.

Shares subject to option
Details of share options granted in terms of the company's share option scheme are as follows

Number of shares
ufrder option

Dption strike price per share Option exercisable until 2017 2016
R46.22 8 March 2017 284 434
R58 10 3 December 2017 49 000 176 800
R56.23 11 November 2018 238 000 258 200
Rb66.42 10 November 2019 306 200 337 800
RG5.11 16 November 2020 290 800 335600
R99.91 8 December 2020 98 200 98 200
R96.46 8 Novernber 2021 548 900 670 000
R122.81 13 November 2022 656 600 751 200
R126.43 12 November 2023 736 100 814 000
R124.22 7 February 2024 50 000 50 000
Total 2973 800 3776234

No further awards will be made under the share opticn plan which effectively closed to additional participants in 2014, Existing
participants have 10 years from the date of issue to exercrse their option rights.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

26,

TREASURY SHARES

During the year The Group Employee Share Trust {2004) purchased 710 086 (2016. 1 154 963) shares in the company at an
average purchase price per share of R180.83 (2016 R196.79). The trust purchased and hoids these shares for the purpose
of satisfying option holder requirements as and when option holders exercise their share option rights.

During the year The SPAR Group Ltd purchased 8 372 shares {refer note 38.3), at an average purchase price per share of R166.9,
amounting to R1.4 miflion. This was done to setile participants considered as 'good leavers' in terms of The SPAR Group Ltd
Conditional Share Plan (CSP).

GROUP

Rmillion 2017 2016
Cost of shares
Balance at beginnmng of year 18.7 269
Share repurchases 129.8 2273
Settlement of share-based payments (1.4)
Shares sold to option holders on exercise of share option rights {131.0) {235.5)
Balance at end of year 16.1 18.7

Number of

shares held

2017 2016

Shares held in trust
Balance at beginning of year 94 421 142952
Share repurchases 710086 1154969
Shares sold to option holders on exercise of share option nghts {708 034) (1 203 500)
Balance at end of year 96 473 94 421




27.

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

27.

-

The SPAR
Group Ltd
Defined Benefit

The BWG Group

The SPAR Holding AG

Pension Fund Retirement Funds Retirement Funds Total
Rmillion 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2076
Retirement benefit funds
Fair value of fund assets
Balance at beginning of year 21.6 211 899.4 7784 15191 - 24401 799.5
Business combination 15588 15588
Expected return on fund assets 2.0 1.8 20 18
Interest income on pian assets 11.1 18.2 2.2 31 13.3 223
Remeasurernent — return on plan
assets (excluding interest income) 28.9 817 57.7 a7 7 86.6 1283
Contributions 0.4 0.3 46.0 51.0 922 48.5 138.6 99.8
Benefits pad (1.5) {1.9) (36.5) (26.7) (19.4) (31.8) (57.4) {(60.0)
Actuarial loss (0.8} 0.1} (0.8) (0.1}
Exchange rate translation 25.5 (3.8) (41.2) {107.2) (15.7) (110.8)
Balance at end of year 21.7 21.6 974.4 899.4 16106 15191 26067 24401
Present value of defined benefit
obligation
Balance at beginning of year {12.4) {139) (1383.7) (11280) {(2270.8) - (3666.7) (1141.9)
Business combination (2 291.3) (2291.3)
Interest cost {1.2) on {16.8) 271 {3.2) (4.4) (21.2) (32.6)
Remeasurement {effect of changes
in financial assumptions) 193.8 (105.6) 193.8 {105.6)
Current seryice cost (0.4) G4 {23.1) (17.9) {71.4) (35.8) {94.9) {54.1)
Benefits paid/accrued to be paid 15 1.5 36.5 268 194 319 57.4 602
Plan participants contributions (4.2) 5.0 (46.1) (24.4) (50.3) (29.4)
Plan changes 1.2 1.2
Actuanial gain/{loss) 2.1 1.5 151.7 (243.3) 149.0 (241.8}
Exchange rate translation {22.0) 95 69.5 159.0 47.5 168.6
Balance at end of year (15.2) (12.4) (1261.6) (13837) (2108.6) (22706) (33854) (36667

The net surplus relating to the SPAR Group Ltd Defined Benefit Fund is not recognised in the statement of financial position,
as the benefits will not be received by The SPAR Group Ltd, and The SPAR Group Ltd is not liable for the oblgations
of the fund while the fund assets exceed the fund habilities. Therefore actuarial gains and losses are not recognised for this fund.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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27. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS { CONTINUED:

I
~
-

The SPAR
Group Ltd

Defined Benefit

The BWG Group

The SPAR Handels AG

Pension Fund Retirement Funds Retirement Funds Total
Rmillion 2017 2016 2007 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Retirerment benefit funds
Amounts recognised on the
statement of financial position
Present value of fund obligations {1261.6} (13837) {2108.8) (2270.6) (3370.2) (3654.3)
Fair value of plan assets 974.4 8994 16106 15191 25850 24185
Net liability recognised in the
statement of financial position - - (287.2) {4843) (498.0) (751.5) (785.2) {(12358)
Amounts recognised on the
statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income
Statement of profit or loss - - {28.8) (24.6) (72.4) (37.1)  {101.2) (61.7)
Current service cost (23.1) (16.7) 71.4) {(35.8} {94.5) {(52.5)
Net interest on obligation (5.7 (7.9 {1.0) 0.3 (6.7) (9.2)
Other comprehensive incame - - 1806 (162.2) 251.5 (57.9) 432.1 (220.1)
Rerneasurement — return on ptan
assets (excluding interest income) 28.9 81.1 57.7 477 86.6 128.8
Remeasurement — defined
benefit obligation (changes in
assumptions) 193.8 (105.6) 1838 (105.6)
Net actuarial gains/{losses)
recognised in the current year 151.7 (243.3} 151.7 (243.3)
The fair value of plan assets at
end of period for each category
are as follows:
Cash and cash eguivalents (%) 4.0 6.0 1.9 53
Equities (%) 94.0 94.0 52.0 44.0 29.9 21.7
Property (%) 6.0 6.0 7.0 70 109 12.5
Fixed interest bonds (%) 37.0 43.0 57.3 60.5
Total 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Sensitivity of pension cost
trend rates
The ympact on the defined
benefit chhigation, based on
a quantitative sensitivity analysis
for the pension cost trend rate,
is set out below: (%)
Defined benefit obligation 0.5 (0.4) (113.8) (1384) (180.5)  (208.1)
Defined benefit obligation (0.5) 0.4 75.7 166.0 209.8 68.8
The key actuarial assumptions
applied in the determination of
fair values include:
inflation rate (%) 5.0 70 1.7 1.2 0.6 06
Salary escalation rate (%) 6.0 80 1.7 1.2 1.0 1.0
Discount rate (%) 9.0 9.7 21 1.3 0.6 0.2
Expected rate of return on
plan assets (%) 9.0 9.7 1.3 23 2.3 23




27.

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - JUMNTiN LD,
27.1 Retirernent benefit funds 77 107

The defined benefit plans typically expose the group to actuarial assumptions such as investment risk, interest rate risk,
longevity risk and satary risk. Changes in these vanables will result in a change to the defined benefit plan liability.

The SPAR Group Ltd Retirement Funds {(Southern Africa)

The company contributes towards retirement benefits for substantially all permanent employees who, depending on preference,
are members of either the group's defined contribution pension fund, defined contribution staff provident fund. defined
contribution management provident fund or defined benefit fund. Contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirernent
benefits are recognised to profit and loss when due.

Allfunds are governed by the Pension Funds Act, 24 of 1956. The funds are managed by appointed administrators and investment
managers, and their assets remain independent of the company.

The SPAR Group Ltd Contribution Funds

in terms of therr rules, the defined contribution funds have annual financial reviews, which are performed by the funds' consulting
actuaries. At the date of their last reviews the funds were judged 1o be financially sound. Contributions of R115.9 million (2016
R1C7.0 mitlion) and R113.8 million {2016. R105.0 million} were expensed for the group and company respectively during the year.

The SPAR Group Ltd Defined Benefit Pension Fund

The SPAR Group Ltd Defined Benefit Pension Fund was valued as at 30 September 2017, and the fund was found to be in a
sound financial position. The projected unit credit method is used to calculate the present value of plan habilities. Plan assets are
measured at fair value. At that date the actuanal fair value of the plan assets represent 100% of the plan fiabif ties.

Since the last valuation, the benefits of all active members were converted to defined contribution benefits. Members have
ceased contributions into this fund effective 1 August 2017 and will transfer to the Old Mutual Superfund Defined Centribution
Pension and Provident Fund, as selected by the members, after approval has been receved from the Financial Services Board.
The effective date of transfer is 1 August 2017. The employer is one of the participating employers in those funds,

The BWG Group Retirement Funds (Ireland}

The BWG Group contributes towards retirement benefits for approximately 1 066 {2016: 1 060} current and former employees
who are members of either the group's defined benefit staff pension scheme (BWG Foods Ltd Staff Pension Scheme), defined
benefit executive pension scheme (BWG Ltd Executive Pension Scheme) or one ¢of the defined contribution schemes. All
schemes are governed by the Insh Pensions Act, 25 of 1990 (as amenced per Inish statute). The bulk of the funds are invested
with Insh Life Investrent Managers, with small heldings managed by $SgA and F & C and directly by the scheme. The schemes’
assets remain independent of the company.

The BWG Group Defined Benefit Funds

In terms of their rules, the defined benefit funds have annual financial reviews, which are performed by the funds' consulting
actuanes. At the date of their last reviews the funds were judged to be on track to meet their obligations. Current service
costs, past service costs or credits and net expenses or income are recogrised to profit or loss. The defined benefit pension
schemes obligations were valued at R 261.6 million (2016: R1 383.7 million) using the projected unit credit method and
the fund was found to be in a sound financial position. At that date the actuarial far value of the plan assets represent 77.0%
{2016: 65.0%) of the plan liabilities.

The next actuarial valuation of the defined benefit schemes will take place on 1 January 2018, These schemes are closed
to further membershup.

The BWG Group Contribution Funds
The 8WG Group operates a number of defined contribution pension schemes. Contributions of R13.6 million (2016: R10.8 million)
were expensed during the year.

The SPAR Helding AG Retirement Funds (Switzerland)

The pension plan of SPAR Holding AG and the undertakings economically hnked to itis a contribution based plan which guarantees
a minimum interest credit and fixed conversien rates at retirement. Disability and death benefits are defined as a percentage
of the insured salary. The plan for additional risk benefits provides disability and death benefits defined as a percentage of the
additional nisk salary. 1AS 19.139 {a)} (i) provides benefits over the LPP/BVG law, which stipulates the minimum requirement of
the mandatory employer's sponsored pension plan in Switzerland. The pension plan 1s set up as a separate legal entity. The
foundation 1s responsible for the governance of the plan, the hoard is composed of an equal number of representatives from
the employer and the employees The plan must be fully funded under LPP/BVG law on a static basis at all times. In case of
underfunding, recovery measures must be taken, such as additonal financing from the employer or from the employer and
employees, or reduction of henefits or a combmation of both. The foundation has set up mvestment guidelines, defiming in
particular, the strategic allocation with margins.

SPAR Switzerland retirement funds contribute towards retirement benefits for approximately 1 406 (20161 445) current and
former employees.

The next actuarial valuation of the definaed benefit schemes will take place on 31 March or 30 September 201 8.

These schemes are closed to further membership.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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27. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - _LnTiN 20,
27.2 Post-retirement medical aid provision

GROUP COMPANY

Rmillion 2017 2016 2017 2010
Balance — actuarial valuation at beginning of year (156.4) {140.8} (156.4) {140.8)
Recogrised as an expense during the currant yaar (17.6) {14.6) (17.6) {14,6)

Interest cost (14.3} {11.5) {14.3) (11.5)

Current service cost (3.3) (3.1} (3.3) 3.1
Employer contributions 7.6 6.9 7.6 6.9
Actuarial gain/(loss) 1.4 (7.9 11.4 (7.9)
Balance at end of year {155.0) {156.4) {155.0) (166.4)
The principal actuarial assumptions applied in the
determinaticn of fair values include:
Discount rate — in-service members (%) 96 9.7 96 a7
Discount rate — continuation members (%) 8.6 9.2 8.6 9.2
Medical inflation — in-service members (%) 79 8.7 7.9 8.7
Medical inflation — continuation members (%) 7.1 83 7.1 83
Average retirement age (years} 63/65 63/65 63/65 63/65

The cbligation of the group to pay medica! aid contributions after retirement 1s not part of the conditions of employment
for employees engaged after 1 March 1997. There are 267 (2016: 267} pensioners and current employees who remain entitled
to this benefit. The expected payments to retired employees for the next financial year is 88.5 million {2016 R7.7 million}.

The impact on the defined benefit obligation, based on a quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumaptions s
set out below:

Sensitivity
Rmillion % change Discount rate Medical inflation
2017 2016 2077 2016
Defined benefit obligation 1.0 (16.2) (157) 188 221
Defined benefit obligation (1.0 19.6 236 {16.0) (15.3)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit obhigation
as a result of reasonable changes in the key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. Based on past experience,
lite expectancy is assumed to remain unchanged. The last actuarial valuation was performed in September 2017 and the next
valuation is expected to be performed dunng the 2018 financial year.

GROUP COMPANY

Rmillion 2017 2016 2017 2016
28. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Present value

TIL JV Lid 963.8 824.4 963.8 224.4

SPAR Hoiding AG 736.3 7436

Total 1700.1 15680 963.8 824.4

Undiscounted value

TIL JV Ltd 1194.1 10942 11941 10942

SPAR Holding AG 823.0 303.6

Total 20171 1897.8 1194.1 10942




28.

29.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - " el b

The SPAR Group Ltd acquired a controlling shareholding of 80% in the BWG Group, which is held by TIL JV Ltd, a wholly owned
subsidiary of The SPAR Group ttd, effective from 1 August 2074. The SPAR Group Ltd has agreed to acquire the remaining 20%
shareholding from the non-controlling shareholders at specified future dates and in accordance with a determined valuation model. An
election was made not to recognise a non-controlling interest, but to fair value the financial hability. The financial liability ss calculated
as the present value of the non-controlling interests share of the expected purchase value and discounted from the expected exercise
dates to the reporting date. As at 30 September 2017, the financial liability was vaiued at R963.8 milion (2016: R824.4 million) based
oh management’s expectation of future profit performance. The group has recognised 100% of the attributable profit.

Repayments will commence in December 2019 and continue in 2020 and 2022.

Interestis recorded in respect of this kability within finance costs using the effective interest rate method. The net exchange differences
on the financial liability have been presented in finance costs. The estimated future purchase price is fair valued at each reporting
date and any changes in the value of the liabiity as & result of changes in the assumptions used to estmate the future purchase
orice are recorded in profit or loss.

In 2017, a fair value adjustment was made to the TIL JV Ltd financial liability relating to changes in forecast profits. In 2016
there were no changes to these assumptions and therefore no fair value adjustment.

The SPAR Group Ltd acquired a controlling shareholding of 60% in the SPAR Holding AG, which is held by SAH Ltd, a wholly owned
subsidiary of The SPAR Group Ltd, effective from 1 April 20716. Part of the purchase pnce of this 60% shareholding 15 a deferred
consideration of CHF16.0 rmilion, which will be paid between December 2020 and February 2021 with the purchase of the remaining
40% of SPAR Holding AG. The purchase of the remaining 40% shareholding is at a set price of CHF40.3 million. The total ebligation
of CHF56.3 million was accounted for as a financial ability at the present value of the obligation, discounted from the expected
settlement date to the reporting date. An election was made not to recognise the non-controlling interest's share of profits or loszes
in equity, but rather as the movernent n the fair value of the discounted financial liability to purchase the remaining 40% shareholding.

Interest is recorded in respect of this liability within finance costs using the effective interest rate methed. The net exchange differences
on the financial liability have been presented in finance costs.

Refer to note 39 ~ movements in level 3 financial mstruments carried at fair value for a reconciliation of the opening and closing
balance of the financial liabiiities discussed above.

GROUP COMPANY
Rmillion 2017 2016 2017 2016
BORROWINGS
Foreign
Loans secured by mortgage bonds over fixed property 3548.2 33520
Syndicated bank term ioans 975.6 10782
Total barrowings at amortised cost 45248 4 430.2 - -
Less short-term portion of borrowings (364.4) {265.9)
Long-term portion of borrowings 4160.4 4164.3 - -
Schedule of repayment of borrowings
Year to Septernber 2017 2831
Year to September 2018 382.5 280.3
Year to September 2019 3719 286.5
Year 1o September 2020 22184 2008.5
Year to September 2021 75.3 787
Year 10 September 2022 onwards 1701.0 1780.0
Undiscounted value of total borrowings 4749.1 47172 - -

TiL JV Ltd has undrawn committed faciiities of R263.8 miltion (2016. R400.4 million) as at 30 September 2017. SPAR Holding AG has
undrawn banking faciliies of R421.4 million (2016: R462 9 million) as at 30 September 2017.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

28. BORROWINGS - " [T L.

Year-end nominal

interest rate Year of maturity

Carrying value

2017 2016 2017 2016
Terms and debt repayment schedule Currency % % 2017 2016  Rmillion Rmillion
Secured borrowings EUR 1.8 18 2020 2020 26123 23783
Secured borrowings CHF 0.8-24 08-30 2017-2025 2017-2023 9359 9737
Unsecured borrowings CHF 0.9-20 05-20 2017-2021 2017-2021 976.6 1078.2
Total 45248 44302
The loans are secured by certain fixed and current assets held by The 8WG Group and SPAR Halding AG.
The expected maturity dates are not expected to differ from the contractual maturity dates.
Refer to note 39 for further disclosure.

GROUP COMPANY
Rmillion 2017 2016 2017 2016
30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables 10342.6 9769.6 6507.9 59321
Other payables 3110.1 33929 15587.7 16147
Trade and other payables 13 452.7 131625 8 065.6 7 546.8

The directors consider the carrying amount of trade and other payables to approximate their fair value due to their short-term duration.

GROUP
Onerous
Supplier Termination lease
Rmillion claims of leases  provisions Total
31. PROVISIONS

2017
Balance at beginning of year 3.0 809 13.0 96.9
Provisions raised/{reversed) 3.0 2.8 (2.6) 13.2
Provisions utilised (0.6) (19.7) (3.7 (24.0)
Exchange rate translation 1.4 (0.3) 1.1
Balance at end of year 5.4 75.4 6.4 87.2
Analysed as follows:

Non-current provisions 387 3.2 41.9

Current provisions 54 36.7 3.2 453

COMPANY

Balance at beginning of year 3.0 - - 3.0
Provisions raised 3.0 3.0
Provisions utilised (0.6) (0.6}
Balance at end of year 5.4 - - 5.4
Analysed as follows:

Current provisions [ 5.4 54 [




31,

32.

GROUP

Onerous
Supphker  Termination lease
Rmillion claims of leases provisions Total
PROVISIONS 771 LD,
206
Balance at beginning of year 5.2 349 20.2 110.3
Provisions raised/(reversed) (2.6) (2.6}
Provisions utilised 2.2) {4.5) (3.8) (10.5)
Exchange rate translation 0.5 (0.8 (0.3)
Balance at end of year 3.0 80.9 13.0 96.9
Analysed as foliows:
Non-current provisions 494 9.5 589
Current provisions 30 315 35 380
COMPANY
Balance at beginning of year 3.7 - - 37
Provisions utilised (0.7) 07
Balance at end of year 3.0 - - 3.0
Analysed as follows:
Current provisions [ 3.0 30 |

The provisions for supplier claims, termination of feases and onerous leases represents management's best estimate of the aroup's
liability. The supplier claims provision represents the value of disputed deliveries and other 1ssues. Termination of leases refates
to specific leases which have been identified for surrender. The pravision is based on histornic experience of three years rental to
surrender. Onerous lease provisions represents the value by which the unavoidable costs of meeting lease obligations exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received under certain lease agreements.

GROUP COMPANY
Rmillion 2017 206 2017 7016
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
32.1 Cash generated from operations
Operating profit 25825 25773 2 026.6 20824
Depreciation 657.7 531.4 187.5 166.3
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 15.7 176 1.9 14
Net profit on assets held for sale (7.5) (3.0
Post-retirement medical aid provision 10.0 7. 10.0 7.7
Retirerment henefit fund provision 13.3 (8.7)
BBBEE transaction 10.7 67
Share-based payments 333 41.8 333 41.8
Provision against loans and trade receivables (52.3) 50.7 13.0 8.1
Amortisation of prepaid cost 10.9 121
Lease smoothing adjustment 10.6 {2.9) 4.6 0.7
Profit on disposal of businesses (2.8) (2.8)
Impairment of goodwill 9.3 68
Fair value adjustment {0.6) 1.2
Exchange rate translation {1.0) (2.7 (5.4)
Cash generated from operations before: 3279.1 372323 2276.7 23196
Net working capital changes 13.0 17.9 90.8 {308.1)
Increase in inventories (23.7) {133.6) (113.5) (170.0)
increase in trade and other recevables {221.7) (722.2) (317.6) {765.0)
increase in trade payables and provisions 258.4 873.7 521.9 6269
Cash generated from operations 3292.1 3250.2 2 367.5 20115
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED})
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

32.

33.

GROUP COMPANY
Rmillion 2017 2016 2017 2016
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS .CONTINUEE)
32,2 Net movement in loans and investments
Proceeds from disposal of associate 78 7.8
Proceeds from disposal of other investments 0.6 0.6
Other investments acquired (3.2) (3.2)
Dividends from associates 1.5
Net movement on retailer and subsidiary loans (249.5) (119.7) (90.2) {96.3)
Loan to The SPAR Group Ltd Employee Share Trust (2004) (74.6} (144.3)
{Loans to)/repayment of loans te related parties (0.2) 38 (0.2) 38
Investment in associates (69.9) (69.9)
Loan to assaciate (15.0) (13.4) (15.0) {13.4)
Total (336.3) (120.9) {253.1) (241.8)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
33.1 Retail stores acquired

During the course of the financial year, GCL 2016 Ltd (Gilletts), 2 subsdiary of The BWG Group, acquired the assets of four retall
stores, and The SPAR Group Ltd acquired the assets of seven retail stores (2016: two retail stores). These acquisitions were
funded from available cash resources. The principal activity of these acquisitions 1s that of retail trade and all its aspects, The
stores were purchased in order to protect strategic sites, and the goodwill ansing on the business combimations 1s & reflection
of future turnover expected to be made by the group as a result of these acquisitions. The goodwill recogrised on acquisition is
not deductible for tax purposes.

Total acquisition costs for business acquisitions concluded during the 2017 financial year amounted to R3.0 mdlion {2016:
R21.0 miilion) and have been recognised as an expense in profit or [oss in the 'other non-operating items’ line.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at date of acquisition

GROUP COMPANY
2017 2016 2017 2016
UK SA SPAR GCL SA
retail retail Holding 2016 retail

Rmillion stores  stores Totat AG Ltd  stores Total Total Total
Assets 2.1 15.1 17.2 | 51575 1437 137 53149 13.4 137
Property, plant and equipment 15.1 151 | 28738 146 137 29023 13.4 13.7
Other investments - 55.2 55.2
Loans - 9.9 9.9
Inventories 1.7 1.7 | 1303.1 56.9 1360.0
Trade and other recevables 0.4 0.4 686.0 206 706.6
Provision for doubtful debts - {257) (25.7)
Cash and cash equivalents - 2652 51.6 306.8
Liabilities - - ~ [(41955) (211.8) - {4407.0) - -
Post-employment benefit abligations - | (7325) (732.5)
Long-term borrowings - [(2327.2) (126.3) (2 453.5)
Trade and other payables - (g9c.1)  (78.0) (1068.1)
Income tax hability - (3.3 (2.6) {5.9)
Deferred taxation liability -] (142.4) {(4.6) (147.0)
Total identifiable net assets
at fair value 2.1 15.1 17.2 g62.0 {67.8) 13.7 G07.9 13.4 137
Goodwill arising from acquisition 152 1073 1225 3325 363.2 42.0 737.7 80.6 42.0
Non-controlling interest - (384.8) {384.8)
Investment in subsidiary - = 685.4
Purchase consideration 173 1224 138.7 809.7 2954 55.7 12608 940 741.%
Paid in cash 17.3 1224 139.7 686 .4 263.0 55.7 10041 940 7411
Deferred consideration - 2243 2243
Contingent consideration - 32.4 32.4
Cash and cash equivalents acquired - {255.2) (51.6} (306.8)
Business acquisition costs 3.0 3.0 6.2 148 210 62
Loss on cash flow hedge through CCI - 392 392 392
Deferred consideration - {224.3) (224.3)
Contingent consideration - {32.4) (32.4)
Net cash outflow on acquisition 203 1224 1427 4756 2262 55.7 7575 94.0 7365




33. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS ' CONTINJED:
23.2 Assets and liabilities at date of disposal
The assets and Labilities disposed of relate to three South African retaif stores (2016: one retail store).

GROUP COMPANY
Rmitlion 2007 2016 2037 2016
Non-current agsets 45.2 29 45.2 8.9
Property, plant and eguipment 6.4 89 6.4 89
Goodwill 388 38.8
Profit on disposal of businesses 28 1.3 28 1.1
Proceeds 48.0 10.0 48.0 10.0
33.3 Contribution to results for the year
GROUP
2017 2016
UK SA SPAR GCL SA

retail retail Holding 2016 retail
Rmillion stores stores Total AG Itd stores Total
Revenue 4.6 468.3 4729 65235 96.2 126.5 6 746.2
Trading {losses)/profit before
acquisition costs (0.5) (42.0) {42.5) 32.2 9.4 11.4) 30.6

33.4 Finalisation of SPAR Helding AG (SPAR Switzerland} acquisition
The initial accounting for the acquisition of SPAR Switzerland in 2016 was provisional for the value of intangible assets acquired
as the valuation of these assets had not yet been completed. This process has now been concluded. which has resulted in no
vatue being attributed to intangible assets acquired for this business combination, and no change to the initial goodwill ansing
on acguisHion.

33.5 Finalisation of GCL 2016 Ltd (Gilletts) acquisition
The initiat accounting for the 2016 acquisition of Gilletts was provisional for the value of the repairs as a result of the dilapidation
vatuation, the contingent consideration, inventories, trade and other receivables, and trade and other payables. The working
capital element of the acquisition was subject 1o a completion account process which requires that the value of the working
capital purchased at the date of acquisition be finalised. This process has now been concluded, and resulted in no material
changes to the values disclosed for this business combination.
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35.
351

GROUP COMPANY
Rmillion 2017 2016 2017 2016
CONTINGENT LiABILITIES
Guarantees issued in respect of the finance obligations
- Loan guarantees 760.5 7437 760.5 7437
— Rental guarantees 4.2 3.1 4.2 31
-~ Customs and excise guarantees 1559 152.3
- Guarantee of TIL JV Ltd borrowing facilities 2880.8 28854
— Guarantee of SPAR Holding AG borrowing facilities 488.3 5750
— Guarantee of Sun Village Supermarket (Pty) Ltd finance obligations 20,7
- Guarantee of Annison 45 (Pty) Ltd finance obhgations 2.3 2.2
- IT retail computer equipment lease scheme 168.5 166.5 168.5 166.5
Total 1089.1 1065.56 43253 4375.9

The board has Imited guarantee facibties to R1 090 0 million (2016 R990.0 mullion) relating to Southern Africa. The company has
also provided a financial guarantee on the TIL JV Lid bank facilities to the value of €199.2 milion (2076. €220 mitlion), and the SPAR
Holding AG borrowing facilities to the vajue of CHF35 miliion (207 6: CHF40 million).

The company has guaranteed the finance obligations of SPAR Retail Stores (Pty) Ltd and Kaphan Trading (Pty) Ltd, TiL JV Ltd,

Annison 45 (Pty} Ltd and Sun Village (Pty) Ltd to its bankers,

These guarantees commenced 15 Apnl 2011, 25 July 2011, 24 June 2015, 29 September 2015 and 13 December 20716 respectively

and are for an indefinite period.

GROUP COMPANY
Land and Land and

Rmillion buildings Other buitdings Other
COMMITMENTS
Operating lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable
operating leases:
2017
Payable within one year 1804.0 69.9 11371 3.2
Payable later than one year but not later than five years 54954 144.0 34277 1.8
Payable later than five years 4357.3 16.0 2203.2 0.1
Total 11 656.7 229.9 6 768.0 5.1
2016
Payable within one year 1596.6 71.5 950.4 7.4
Payable later than one year but not later than five years 5157.2 145.9 30128 6.0
Payable later than five years 41939 14.0 1675.0
Total 10 947.7 231.4 5638.2 13.4
Operating lease receivables
Future minimum sub-lease receivables due under non-cancellable
property leases. GROUP COMPANY

2617 2016 2077 2016
Receivable withir one year 11247 937.8 1056.3 876.3
Receivable later than one year but not later than five years 3185.9 27857 3162.1 27713
Receivable later than five years 2093.9 1515.9 2052.2 14995
Total operating lease receivables 6 404.5 5 209.4 6 270.6 51471




GROUP COMPANY
Rmiflion 2007 2016 2017 2016
35. COMMITMENTS C 70y 7TING BTy
35.3 Capital commitments
Contracted 5498 3220 33 2251
Approved but not contracted 94.8 154.6 88.7 56.9
Total capital commitments 644.6 476.6 429.8 2820
Capital commuiments will be financed from group resources.
36. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND INTERESTS REPORT
GROUP
Retirement Travel
Performance- funding allowance Share
refated contri- and other option
R'000 Salary bonus butions benefitst gains Total
36.7 Emoluments
2017
Executive directors
G0 G'Connar 5053 1582 599 429 7663
WA Hook 3407 1256 423 463 22620 28 209
MW Godfrey 3302 1000 397 437 3735 8871
R venter 2 889 847 362 466 4 564
Total emoluments 14 651 4725 1781 1795 26 355 49 307
2016
Executive directors
GO O'Connor 4165 4079 496 396 9136
WA Hook 3407 3200 421 419 7 447
MW Godfrey 2 965 2874 357 539 4008 10743
R Venter 2675 2594 336 463 28617 34685
Total emoluments 13212 12 747 1610 1817 32 625 62011
t7 Other benefits include redical aid contnibutions and g long-service award
GROUP
R'000 2017 2016
36.7 Fees for services as non-executive directors
MJ Harkinson {chairman) 1210 1088
PK Hughes® {retired 28 February 2016) 137
RJ Hutchison® {retired 28 February 2016) 131
MP Mads 456 398
M Mashologu?® 475 387
HK Mehta® & 78 597
P Mnganga® 563 483
CF Wells?< ¢ 775 694
Total fees 4194 3915

* Merber of Audif Committee

" Member of Rermuneration and Nemimation Committees
Member of Risk Comimittee

T Member of Socal and Ethies Comimittoe
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Number of shares

207 2016
36. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND INTERESTS REPORT °7 ~ 711, 7
36.3 Directors' interests in the share capital of the company

Executive directors
GO O'Connor — direct beneficial holding 300 300
WA Hook — direct beneficial holding 25 500 4200
Non-executive directors
MJ Hankinson — held by associates 2800 2 800
HK Mehta — direct beneficial holding 2 000 2000
HK Mehta — indirect beneficial holding 10 000 10000
CF Wells — direct beneficial 1100 1100

As at the date of this report, the directors’ interests in the share capital of the company remained unchanged,

36.4 Declaration of disclosure
Other than that disclosed ahove and in note 37, no consideration was paid to, or by any third party, or by the company itself,
in respect of the services of the company's directars, as directors of the company, during the year ended 30 September 2017.

37. DIRECTORS' SHARE SCHEME INTERESTS

The group’s ophon scheme provides the right to the option holder to purchase shares in the company at the option price. On election
by opticn holders, cne third of the options granted vest after three years, with a further third vesting on the expiry of years four and five
respectively. Option holders have 10 years from the date of issue to exercise their option nghts.

37.1 Options held over shares in The SPAR Group Ltd

Number of
N . optiens held
Option price
Date of option issue Rand 2017 2016
Executive directors
GO O'Connor 07/02/2014 124.22 50 000 50 000
Total 50 000 50 000
WA Hook 09/03/2007 46,22 120000
04/12/2007 58.10 60 000
11/11/2008 50.23 100 000 100 000
10/11/2009 66,42 50 000 50 000
G8/12/2010 $9.91 50000 50 000
08/11/2011 96.46 55 000 55 000
13/11/2012 122.81 60 000 60 000
Total 315 000 495 000
R Venter 08/12/2010 99.91 23 200 23200
08/11/2011 96.46 11 860 11800
13/11/2012 12281 30000 30000
12/11/2013 126.43 30 000 30 000
Total 95 000 95 000
MW Godfrey 09/03/2007 46.27 20000
04/12/2007 58.10 28000
1141172008 50.23 12 000 12000
10/11/2009 66.42 12 000 12 000
08/12/2010 99.91 25 000 25000
08/11/2011 96.46 35 000 35000
13/%1/20012 122 81 30 000 30 000
12/11/2013 126.43 30 000 30 000
Total 144 000 172 000

Total directors share scheme interests 604 000 812 000




Market

Date of  Number of Option price oh
options options price exercise Gain
exercised exercised Rand Rand R'000

37. DIRECTORS' SHARE SCHEME INTERESTS - "/NTHN.F,
37.2 Options exaercised

WA Hook 14/02/2007 40 000 46,22 17815 5277
WA Hook 24/02/2017 80 00C 46.22 182.00 10 862
WA Hook 27/09/207 7 38700 5810 166.10 4180
WA Hoaok 29/09/2017 21 30C 58.10 166.10 2300
MW Godfrey 27/02/2017 20 00C 46.22 183.00 2736
MW Godfrey 27/02/2017 8 000 58.10 183.00 939

37.3 Shares held by patticipants in terms of the CSP
In terms of the CSP, the group has granted shares to executives, senior management and key talent specifically identified in the
form of performance share awards. These shares vest over a period of three years subject to performance conditions at year-
end. No exercise price is allocated to these awards.

Awaids to participants in terms of the CSP are as follows:

Share price Number of shares
on date
of grant
Grant date Rand 2017 2016

Executive directors
GO O'Cennor 17/02/20715 133.61 36 665 36 655
GO O'Connor 09/02/2016 19538 20 000 20 000
GO O'Connor Q7/02/2017 175.10 14 600
WA Hook 17/02/2015 133.61 14 000 14 000
WA Hock 09/02/2016 195.38 7 500 7 500
WA Hook a7/02/2017 175.10 7 500
R Venter 17/02/2015 133.63 22 000 22 000
R Venter 09/02/2016 19538 9 600 5 600
R Venter Q7/02/2017 175.10 7500
MW Godfrey 17/02/2015 133.61 22 000 22000
MW Godfrey 09/02/2016 195.38 11000 11000
MW Godfrey 07/02/2017 17510 9000
Total 181 365 142 765
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38.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

381

38.2

Share oplion scheme

The company has in place a share option scheme which is operated through The SPAR Group Ltd Share Employee Trust (2004}
(the trust). On election by option helders, one third of the options granted vest after three years, with a further third vesting on
the expiry of years four and five respectively. Options issued by the trust expire 10 years from grant date. Options are forfeited
if the employee leaves the group before vesting date,

Share options outstanding at year-end are as foliows:

Number of options

2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year 3776234 4545934
Options taken up* {708 034) (1168 700}
Options forfeited or reinstated (27 600) (1 000}
Balance at end of year 3040 600 3776234

Rand Rand
+  Weighted average grant price of options taken up durning the year 74.6 693
++  Weighted average selling price of options exercised during the year 182.8 199.2

No further issues of options have been granted under the share option scheme. Please see CSP note 38.3.

Details of the options granted are set out in note 25.2. The options granted were valued at inception, and charged to profit or joss
over the vesting peniods of three to five years. The charge for the current year 1s R5.4 mitlion {2016: R10.3 million). The fair value
of these options was calculated using a binormial model.

Broad-hased black economic empawerment deal
The broad-based black economic empowerment deal vested in 2016. Refer to note 4.

CSP

The group operates a CSP under which it receives services from employees as consideration for eguity instruments of the
company. Shares granted in terms of the CSP meet the definition of an equity-settled share-based payment.

In terms of the CSP. the group has granted shares to executives, senior management and key talent specifically identified in the
form of perforrmance share awards, Awards can comprise shares {restricted shares) that are subject to the condition that the
participants remain employed with the group (employment condrtion} and/or shares (performance shares) that are subject to
an employment condition and company-related performance conditions (performance condition) over a predetermined period
{performance period). The award will only be settied after the vesting date and the participant will not have any shareholder or
voting rights prior to the vesting date. Participants do nat receive dividends during the vesting peried and will only begin1eceving
dividends if and after the awards have vested.

Participants terminating employment due to resignation or dismissal on grounds of misconduct, proven poor performance or
proven dishonest or fraudulent conduct, or any reason cther than stated below will be classified as 'bad leavers’ and will forfeit
all unvested awards.

Participants terminating employment due to death, retirernent, retrenchment, ill-health, disability, injury or sale of SPAR will be
classified as ‘good leavers' and a portion of all unvested awards will vest on the date as soon as reasonably possibie after the
date of termination of employment.

The CSP officially grants performance share awards to employees which vest over a period of three years. These shares were
awarded subject to the following three performance conditions.

Headline Earnings Per Share (HEPS) growth,
Return On Net Assets (RONA), and
Total Shareholder Return (TSR},



38.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS : C -~ 7it 1)

383 CsP -
The fair value {excluding attrition) is calculated as the share price at grant date, muitiplied by the number of shares granted.
The fair value is then adjusted for attrition. To determine the number of shares that will vest at the end of the vesting peniod as
a result of the performance conditions, a model 1s used that has both stochastic and deterministic features. The assumptions
and nputs used in the valuation of the units issued are summarnsed in the table that follows. Also taken into account in this
calculation are SPAR forecast HEPS growth, SPAR Remuneration Committee HEPS tentative target set in November 2014 had
raised the expectation for future RONA to midway between the tentative target and upper target, SPAR forecast average RONA
and CP| to grant date. As expectations are revised during the performance period, the value per unit will be restated accordingly.

The volatilities of the TSR of SPAR and each of the peer companies were based on the three-year historical annualised standard
dewviations of the weekly log returns. It should be noted that the absolute values of the volatility assumptions are less impartant
than most other schemes. This is because the proportion of shares vesting under the TSR performance condition 1s determined
largely by performance relative to the peer group.

GROUP AND COMPANY

Model inputs and assumptions as at
30 September 2017 2017 2016 2015
Description November 2016 gramt November 2015 grant  November 2014 grant
Grant date 15 November 2016 10 November 2015 11 Novemnber 2014
Vesting date 7 February 2020 9 February 2019 17 February 2018

1 October 2016 to 1 October 201510 1 October 2014 to
Performance period for TSR condition 30 September 2019 30 September 2018 30 Septemher 2017
Total number of units granted 231700 326100 513951
Share price at grant date R175.1 R195.3 R133.61
CP| after grant date (NACA) 14.2% 16.0% 16 6%
Risk-free rate (NACA} 8.0% T7% 7%
Dividend yield (NACC) 2.9% 3.0% 3.2%
Volatility Varies by company Varies by company Vares by company
Correiation with SPAR 60% 60% 60%
Employee ‘good’ attrition 1% p.a. 1% p.a. 1% p.a.
Employee ‘bad’ attrition 4% p.a. 4% p.a. 4% p.a.
The weighted average fair value of the shares
granted during the financial year is: Rand Rand Rand
Value per unit {as at valuation date, excluding
attrition impact and performance canditions) 159.28 177.01 12019
Value per unit {as at valuation date) 94.69 127.79 99 89
Total value (allowing for attrition) 21 938 801 41 671 541 50 594 786
Total value (without allowing for attntion) 24 344 649 46 264 312 53711744
Movement in the number of full share grants
awarded in terms of the CSP 2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year 832 585 513951
Shares granted during the year 231700 326100
Shares forfeited dunng the year (31 314) (7 465}
Shares vested during the year (refer to note 26) (8 372)
Balance at end of year 1024 599 832 585
Charge to profit or loss for the year Amilion 27.9 316
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GROUP COMPANY
Rmillion 2077 2016 2017 2016
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial instruments classification
Net bank balances 14720 15329 4093 585.6
i oans* 5231 2640 279.2 200.5
Other equity Investrmentg+++ 8§7.7 54.2 4.8 16
Trade and other receivabies+ 10814.3 10 544.0 7626.3 73130
Trade and ather payablesss (13452.7) (13162.5) {8 065.6) {7 546.8)
FEC liability=#+++ (4.9)
FEC asset/(liability) e+ 0.2 (0.7} 0.2 (0.7}
Borrowingss» {4 524.8) {4 430.2)
Financial liabilities»++ {1700.1) (1 568.0) (963.8) (824 4)

= (lassified under 1AS 39 as loans and recevables

-« (lassihed under 1AS 39 as financial habiities measured at amortised cost

+++ Classified under JAS 39 as financial assets or habiines at farr value through profit or loss
»wex Designated as & hedging instrument

The company and group’s fimancial instruments consist pnmarily of bank balances and overdraft funding from banks, trade payables,
loans, borrowings, financial liabilities and trade receivables. The carrying amount of trade receivables, after accounting for the
allowance for doubtful debts and bad debts writter off, approximates fair value. Trade receivables represent the estimated future cash
o be received in the short term. The book values of the other categories of financial instruments approximate fair value.

In the normal course of its operations the group is, inter afia, exposed to credit, interest, fiquidity and currency risk on its financial
nstruments. Executive management meets on a regular basis to analyse these risks and to re-evaluate financial management
strategies. Other than forward exchange contracts (FECs), which are used to hedge fereign currency liabdities, and interest rate risk on
the debt in Ireland, other equity instruments and the financial liability to the non-controlling shareholders, the group has no financial
instruments that are classified at fair value through profit or loss. These FECs represent an insignificant portion of the group’s financial
instruments and amounted to a net asset of R0.2 mulion in the current year (2016: net liability of R0.7 million).

The financial liabilities are to the non-controlling shareholders of TIL JV Ltd and SPAR Holding AG, the group’s foreign subsidiaries,
with whom the group has contracted to acquire the minority shareholdings.

For a maturity analysis and further disclosures refer to notes 28 and 29.

The group does not have any exposure to commodity price movements,

Currency risk
The group 15 subject to franslation exposure through the impert of merchandise and its investments in foreign operations by way
of translation nisks and currency risks relating to the financial habilities.

Southern Africa: Import of merchandise
Foreign currency risks that do not influence the group's cash flows (i.e. the risks resulting from the transtation of assets and liabilites
of foreign operations in the group’s reporting currency} are not hedged.

It is the group's policy to cover its material foreign currency exposure which amounted to R11.6 million at year-end (2016:
R6.5 million), in respect of liabilities and purchase commitments, Forward exchange contracts have been taken out to hedge this
currency risk at year-end. There were no speculative positions in foreign currencies,

Foreign exchange contracts
Foreign exchange contracts which constitute designated hedges of currency risk at year-end are as follows:

GROUP AND COMPANY
Average Commit- Fair value of Fair value of
contract ment FEC 2017 FEC 2016
rate Rm Rm Rm
Imports
US dollar 13.55 10.6 0.2 (0.7}
Euro 15.65 1.0




39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT "CONTIMULD.

Currency risk (continued)

Ireland and Switzerland: Financial liabilities

The settlement of the financial liabilities (purchase obligation of non-controlling interest, refer to note 28) 1s denominated it eurcs and
Swiss francs respectively. The group is therefore exposed to currency risk. There i1s also an element of transiation risk as the financial
liahilities are transiated to the rand spot value at year-end.

Refer to note 28 for the effect of foreign exchange differences on the financial liabiities in the current year.

Ireland and Switzerland: Investments in foreign operations
The group 1s also subject to translation exposure.

Translation exposure relates to the group's investments and earnings in non-ZAR currencies which are translated in the ZAR reporting
currency.

Foreign {oan liabfitres are not covered using forward exchange contracts as these are covered by a natural hedge against the
underiying assets. Monetary items are converted to rands at the rate of exchange ruling at the financial reporting date.

The carrying amount of the group's unhedged and uncovered foreign currency dencminated monetary assets and menetary liabilities
at the reporting date is as follows:

GROUP
Rmillion ZAR EUR CHF QOther Total
2017
Financial instrument halances:
Loans 2721 2383 12.7 523.1
Other equity investments 4.8 52.9 57.7
Net bank halances 611.2 539.4 283.0 38.4 1472.0
Trade and other receivables 76319 2335.0 638.1 209.3 10 814.3
Trade and other payables (8 507.1) (3851.1) (873.8) {220.7) (13452.7)
Financial liabilities (963.8) (736.3) (1700.1)
Borrowings {(2612.3) {1912.5) {4 524.8)
2016
Financial instrument balances:
Loans 193.7 60.6 10.3 264.6
Other equity investments 16 52.6 54.2
Net bank balances 10652 208.1 2215 381 15329
Trade and other receivables 73492 23869 6422 165.7 105440
Trade and other payables (8194.2) (3787.9) {989.1) (191.3) (13162.5)
Financial labilities (824.4) {743.6) {1 5680)
Borrowings (2378.3) (2051.9) (44302)
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ! "ol D

Sensitivity analysis

The group has its most significant exposure 1o the euro and Swiss franc through its Ireland and Switzerland operations respectively,
being its controlling shareholding in TIL JV Ltd. the holding company of BWG Foods, its controlbng shareholding in SPAR Handels AG
and the related financial liabilities.

For a 10.0% weakenming of the rand against the euro, there would be an equai and opposite impact on prefit before tax based on the
Insh profitability impact on South Africa as detailed below:

GROUP
Sensitivity
Rmillion % change 2017 2016
Profit before tax 100 27.7 283
Profit before tax (10.0) (27.7) (28.3)

For a 10.0% weakening of the rand against the Swiss franc, there would be an equal and opposite impact on profit before tax based on
the Swiss profitability impact on South Africa as detailed below:

GROUP
Sensitivity
Rmillion % change 2017 2016
Profit before tax 10.0 6.6 06
Profit before tax (10.0) {6.6) (0.6)

interest rate risk

The group is exposed to nterest rate risk on its cash deposits, lcan recevables and loan payables which impacts on the cash
flow arising from these instruments. In the current year, net interest received on cash depaosits net of overdraft was R41.8 million
(2016: R21.5 miliion), interest received from loans was R8.6 million (2016 RZ.0 million) and interest paid on joans was R79.3 million
(2016 R68.8 millicn). The exposure of cash deposits and overdrafts to interest rate risk 18 managed through the group's cash
management system which enables the group to maximise returns while minimising risk. Loan receivables are funded from the
group's cash resources

Te mitigate the nisk of changing interest rates in lreland, the group entered into two interest rate swaps at a fixed rate in exchange
for variable interest. The hedging chjective is to eliminate the risk of interest rate fluctuations over the hedging period which is the
pericd until 30 March 2020 and 24 June 2020, and in effect obtain a fixed interest rate for the bank loans. These hedging instruments
represent an insignificant portion of the group's financial instruments and amounted 1o a net liability of R4.9 million in the current
year {2016 Rnil).

The interest rate profile is as follows:

GROUP

Less than Greater than Total
2007 one year one year borrowings
Borrowings {Rmillion) 3644 4160.4 45248
Total borrowings {%) 8.1 91.9 100.0
The closing rates at 30 September 2017 ranged from 0.8% o 2.4%, For
more details, please refer to borrowings note 29.
2016
Borrowings Rmillion) 2659 41543 44302
Total botrowings (%) 6.0 94.0 100.0

The closing rates at 30 September 2016 ranged from 0.5% 10 3.0%.
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Changes in market interest rates relating to loan receivables do not have a material impact on the group's profits and herice no

sensitivity analysis has been presented.

Net cash balances of R1 472.0 million (2016' R1 532 9 million) expose the group to interest rate risk. The sensitivity of these short-

term balances s assessed below,

Southern Africa

if interest rates relating to cash balances had been 0.5% higher/lower and all variables held constant, the group's profit before tax

for the year would decrease/increase by,

GROUP

Sensitivity
Rmillion % change 2017 2016
Profit before tax 0.5 2.0 1.1
Profit before tax (0.5) (2.0) 1.1}
frefand
if interest rates relating to Insh Joans had been 0.5% higher/lower and all other vanables
held constant. the group's profit before tax for the year would decrease/increase by
Profit before tax 0.5 {13.1) (1.9
Profit before tax {0.5) 13.1 i1.9
Switzerland
Ifinterest rates relating to Swiss |oans had been 0 5% higher/lower and all other vanables
held constant, the group’s profit before tax for the year would decrease/increase by
Profit before tax 0.5 {9.6) (10.3)
Profit before tax {0.5) 9.6 10.3
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT * .5 i

Credit risk

Trade recevables, lease receivables, short-terminvestments and loans and guarantees to retailers represent the significant categones
of the group's financial instruments exposed to credit risk amounting to R12 426.5 million (2016. R11 874.2 mihon). Concentration
nsk is mitigated as the group deals with a broad spread of customers,

Trade receivables consist of

Southern Africa SPAR and Build it member debts
Ireland: Central billing customer and value centre debts
Switzerland: Retailers, wholesale and TopCC clients

Overdue receivables balances, representing 10.2 % {2016. 10.5 %) of the total trade recervables balance, amounted to R1 117.8 million
(2016 R1 114 6 million} at the reporting date. Allowances for doubtful debts totalling R602.7 million {2016° R654 .9 mullion) have been
raised agamst overdue balances. It is a prerequisite for approprate forms of security to be obtained from retailers to reduce exposure
as at 30 Septernber 2017, security representing 70.38% (2016: 59.48%) of the trade receivables balance was held by the group.
Ongeing credit evaluations are performed including regular reviews of security cover held {refer to note 21 for additional disclosure).

Loans to retailers may be discounted with approved financial institutions under standard conditions with recourse block discounting
agreements. Loans which have been discounted with the financial institutions are disciosed as contingent liabdities due to the group
providing guarantees against these discounting agreements. Management have assessed the credit nsk relating to these guarantees
and, where applicabie, provision has been made in the event that the group does have an exposure. The maximum value of exposure
to credit risk relating to guarantees has been disclosed in note 34, We have assessed the group’s exposure and suitable provision has
been made where required.

in 2009, the company sold its investment in retail cornputer equipment and ceded its nght to receive payment of the existing
and future rental streams. In relation to the continuing operation of this scheme, the group is exposed to credit nsk in the event
of the retail steres defaulting on their payments. At year-end, 957 SPAR stores (2016: 939}, 5569 TOPS at SPAR stores (2016 536),
31 Pharmacy at SPAR stores (2016: 24) and 4 Build 1t stores (2016: 1) were participants i the IT retall scheme, with an average debt
of R108 438 (2016 R110 987) per store.

The group selectively assists retail members suffening financial stress in order to ensure the continued operation of stores, thereby
preserving the recoverability of trade and loan recevable balances.

The directors are of the cpinien that the credit risk in respect of short-term cash investments 1s low as funds are only invested with
acceptable financial institutions of high cradit standing and within specific guidelines laid down by the board of directors.

Liquidity risk

The group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adeguate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing faciiities, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profites of financial assets and liabilities. The group has the
following overdraft/call facilities at its disposal-

Southern Africa lreland
Rmillion 2017 2016 2007 2016
Unsecured bank overdraft facilties, reviewed annually, and at call.
- Utilised as at year-end 29154 29188
= Unutilised 2200.0 22000 263.8 400.4
Total available overdraft/call and borrowing facilities 22000 22000 3179.2 3319.2

The majority of the trade payables at year-end will be paid within 30 days of year-end from available facilities or cash received
from debtors.

The group has long-term berrowings giving rise to cash payment obligations. The company has unlimited borrowing powers in
terms of the Memorandum of Incorporation. For a maturity analysis and further disclosures, refer to note 29.
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Fair value hierarchy
The group's financial instruments carried at fan value are classified into three categoeries defined as follows:

Level 1 financial instruments are those that are valued using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for dentical financial
instruments. These instruments consist of the forward exchange contracts.

Level 2 financial instruments are those valued using technigues based primanily on observable market data. Instruments in this
category are valued using quoted prices for simiar instruments or identical instruments in markets which are not considered 1o be
active; or valuation techniques where all the inputs that have a significant effect on the valuation are directly or indirectly based on
observable market data. Financial instruments classified as level 2 mainly comprised other equity investments.

tevel 3 financial instruments are those valued using techriques that incorporate information other than observable market data.

Instruments in this category have heen valued using a valuation technique where at least one input, which could have a significant
effect on the mstrument's vauation, is not based on observable market data.

The following financial instruments on the statement of financial position are carnied at fair value and are further categorised into the
appropriate fair value hierarchy:

Financial instruments

Fair value
Carrying

Rmillion value Level ] Level 2 Level 3
2077
Other equity investments 55.3 55.3
FEC liability designated as a hedging instrument {4.9) (4.9)
FEC asset at fair value through profit or loss 0.2 0.2
Financial habilities {1700.1) {1 700.1}
Total {1 649.5) 4.7) 55.3 {1700.1)
2016
Other equity investments 54.2 54.2
FEC liability at fair value through profit or toss (0.7 0.7)
Financial habiltties (1 568.0) (1 568.0)
Total {1514.5) {0.7) 542 {1 568.0)

Level 2 valuation method and inputs

The level 2 financial instruments consist of the investment in Group Risk Holdings (Pty) Ltd (GRH) and the Hypo Vorarlberg
bank security deposit. The value of the investment in GRH s based on the group’s premium contributions relative to other shareholders
in GRH.

The Hypo Vorariberg bank security deposit is a portfolio of listed shares and bonds. the value of which is observable in the market.

Level 3 sensitivity information

The fair value of the level 3 financial liabilities of R1 700.7 million {2016: R1 568.0 million) was estimated by applying an income
approach vatuation method including a present value discount technique. The fair value measurement 1s based on significant inputs
that are not observable in the market. Key inputs used in the vatuation include the estimated future profit targets, and the discount
rates appled. The estimated profitability was based on historical performances but adjusted for expected growth. The following
factors were applied in calculating the financial habilities at 30 September 2017

TiLJvV Ltd
~ Dhiscount rate of 7.2 % (2016° 7.2%)
- Closing rand/euro exchange rate of 15.96 (2016: 15.59)

SPAR Holding AG
—Discount rate of 2.0% (2016: 2.0%)
~Closing rand/Swiss franc exchange rate of 13.95 (2016 14.38)
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The following tables show how the fair value of the level 3 financial abilities would change in relation to the interest rate f the interest

rate increased or decreased by 0.5%.

GROUP

Discount
TIL JV Ltd rate  Sensitivily Lrability
2017 % % change Rmillion
Financial fiability 7.2 0.5 (14.0)
Financial liability 7.2 {0.5) 14,3
2016
Financal liabulity 7.2 05 {15.8)
Financial liability 7.2 {0.5) 162
SPAR Holding AG
2017
Financial liabilty 20 0.5 (11.9}
Financial liability 2.0 {0.5) 121
2016
Financial liability 2.0 05 (158.5)
Financial hability 20 {G.5) 16.1

Movements in leve] 3 financial instruments carried at fair value

The following tables show a reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of level 3 financial instruments carried at fair value:

GROUP COMPANY
TIL JV Ltd
Rmillion 2017 2018 2007 2016
Balance at beginning of year 824.4 729.8 824.4 726.8
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss 60.1 96,3 60.1 96.3
Net exchange differences arising during the period 277 n 27.7 (.n
Fair vatue adjustment 51.6 51.6
Balance at end of year 963.8 824.4 963.8 824.4
SPAR Holding AG
Rmillion
Balance at beginning of year 743.6 -
Financial liability imually recognised 789.4
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss 14.2 7T
Net exchange differences arising during the penod (37.6) 42
Foreign exchange translation 16.1 (57.7)
Balance at end of year 736.3 743.6 - -
Total financial liabilities 1 700.1 568.0 963.8 §24.4
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Capital risk management
The group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders.

The group's overall capital management strategy remained unchanged i 2017, The strategy entails a philosophy of tight risk
management and minimurm use of denvative nstruments.

The capita structure of the group consists of equity atiributable to shareholders compnsing issued capital, reserves and retained
earnings as disciesed in notes 25 and 38 respectively and borrowings as disclosed in note 29.

Treasury shares (refer note 26} are held from time to time for the purpose of setthng option holder obligations and these are only
acquired on approvai from shareholders and where the market presents value in their acquisition.

The strong cash inflow generated by group operations is utilised te fund distribution centre expansions and other capital expenditure,
and to settle dividends declared, taxation and trade payable obligations.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party relationships exist between the company, its subsidanes, key personnel within the group and its shareholders. These
transactions occurred under terms and conditions no more favourable than transactions concluded with independent third parties,
unless otherwise stated below

40,1 Company
During the year, the following related party transactions occurred.

Between the company and its subsidiaries:
SPAR PE. Property (Pty) Ltd 15 a property company owning the SPAR Fastern Cape distribution centre. This property
is rented by The SPAR Group Ltd. During the year rentals of R21.9 mullon {2016: R19.9 miilion) were paid by the company
to SPAR PE. Property (Pty) Ltd. Dividends of R15.8 million {2016: R14.3 million) were paid by SPAR PE. Property (Pty) Ltd
to The SPAR Group Ltd. The intercompany liability due to The SPAR Group Ltd as at 30 September 2017 amounted to
R72.6 mihon (2076: R72.0 million). The liability is interest-free, unsecured and no date has been set for repayment.

SPAR Namibia {Pty) Ltd and The SPAR Group Botswana (Pty) Ltd have accounting services provided to them by
The SPAR Group Ltd, During the year dividends of R15.0 million (2016: R6.0 millien) and R5.8 million (2016: R5.2mullion) and
management fees of R5.Z milion (2016: R4 5 million) and R0.9 million (2016: R0.9 mullion) were paid to The SPAR Group Ltd
by SPAR Namiba (Pty) Lid and The SPAR Group Botswana [Pty) Ltd respectively, The intercompany liahility due to
The SPAR Group Ltd as at 30 September 2077 amounted to R16.8 mithon (2016 R46.5 million) and R24.5 million
{2016 R17.3 million) for SPAR Namibia (Pty) Ltd and The SPAR Group Botswana (Pty) Ltd respectively. These habifities are
interest-free, unsecured and no date has been set for repayment.

Spar Mozambigue Limitada declared dwvidends to The SPAR Group Ltd duning the year of R0.2 million {2016, R0.2 miflion).
The ntercompany liability due to The SPAR Group Lid as at 30 September 2017 amounted to R5.4 million
(2016 R5 2 million). The liability )s interest-free, unsecured and no date has been set for repayment.

+ The SPAR Guild of Southern Africa and The Build it Guild of Southern Africa are non-profit-making companies set up to
co-ordinate and develop SPAR in Southern Africa. The members of the guild consist of SPAR retailers {who are independent
store owners) and SPAR distribution centres. The members pay subscriptions to the guild, which uses these monies
to advertise and promote SPAR. During the year subscriptions of R8.0 million (2016 R5.6 million) were pad to
The SPAR Guiid of Southern Africa. The intercompany asset/(liability) with The SPAR Group Ltd as at 30 September 2017
amounted to a liabdity of R25.9 million (2016 a liability of R51.9 million) and an asset of R 0.4 mullion (2016: a net asset of
R0O.9 milticn) for the SPAR Guitd and the Build it Guild respectively. The liability is interest-free, unsecured and no date has
heen set for repayment.

The SPAR Group Ltd Employee Share Trust (2004) purchased shares in the company for the purpose of sausfying option
holder obkgations. To fund these purchases, the company advances monies to the trust. At 30 September 2017, funds had
been advanced by the campany to the trust to the amount of R16.1 million (2016: R18.7 million) (refer notes 18 and 26), The
fiability 1s interest-free, unsecured and no date has been set for repayment.

+ Spar Retall Stores (Pty) Ltd 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of The SPAR Group Ltd. During the year The SPAR Group Ltd made
sales to Spar Retail Stores (Pty} Ltd to the value of R370.1 milhon (2016 R352.9 million). The intercompany liability due to
The SPAR Group Ltd as at 30 September 2017 amounted to R183.8 million (2016: R183.8 million). The liability 1s interast-
free, unsecured and no date has been set for repayment,
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Company "~ . e

Between the company and its subsidiaries: (continued)
Kaplian Trading (Pty) Ltd 1s a subsidiary of The SPAR Group Ltd. During the year The SPAR Group Ltd made sales to Kaphan
Trading (Pty) 1td to the value of R57.0 million (2016- R51.9 million). The intercompany hability due to The SPAR Group Ltd as
at 30 September 2017 amounted to R15.0 million (2016° R15.0 milkon). The liability 1s interest-free. unsecured and rio date
has been set for iepayment.

= Annigen 45 (Pty) Ltd 13 a subsidiary of The SPAR Group Ltd, During the year The SPAR Group Ltd made sales to Annison 45
{Pty) Ltd to the vaiue of R26.6 million (2016 R24.3 mullion).

Sun Village Supermarket (Pty) Ltd is a subsidiary of The SPAR Group Ltd. During the year The SPAR Group Ltd made sales
to Sun Village Supermarket {Pty) Ltd to the value of R66.9 million (2076: Rrul).

SPAR Mopan Rural Hub (Pty) Ltd s a subsidiary of The SPAR Group Ltd. Duning the year SPAR Mopant Rural Hub (Pty) Ltd
made sales to The SPAR Group Ltd to the value of R2.3 million (2016, R 0.6 million).

« TIL JV Ltd is a subsidiary of The SPAR Group Ltd. During the current year an intercompany guarantee fee of
R49.3 millien (2016 R54.4 million) was charged by The SPAR Group Litd to TIL JV Ltd. The balance outstanding on
this payable is R120.1 millon {2016: R65.4 million). The liability 1s interest-free, unsecured and no date has been set
for repayment.

Between the company and its associates:

+  Monteagle Merchandising Services (Pty} Ltd 1s an associate of The SPAR Group Ltd. During the year dividends of
R1.5 million (2076: Rnil} were paid to The SPAR Group Ltd by Monteagle Merchandising Services (Pty) Lid,
and promational expenses of R19.6 milion (2016 R15.3 million) were paid by The SPAR Group Ltd to Monteagle
Merchandising Services.

+  The SPAR Group Lid entered inte an associate agreement with Fig Leaf (Pty) Ltd during the 2010 financial year, and
the investment in the associate was sold duning the 2016 financial year. The associate refated to the Gateway SUPERSPAR
in Hermanus. During the year sales of Bnil (2016: R125.8 miflion) were made to the Cateway SUPERSPAR, and dividends of
Rnil (2016 Rnil) were paid to The SPAR Group itd by Fig Leaf (Pty) Ltd.

The SPAR Group Ltd entered into an associate agreement with Gezaro Retailers (Pty) Ltd during the 2013 financial
year. The associate relates to the Zevenwacht SUPERSPAR in Kuils River. During the year sales of R182.9 million
(2016: R166.8 million) were made to the Zevenwacht SUPERSPAR.

The SPAR Group Ltd entered into an associate agreement with Tradefirm 15 (Pty) Ltd dunng the 2017 financial year.
The associate relates to the Eastrmans SUPERSPAR in Durban. During the year sales of R38.4 million were made to Eastmans
SUPERSPAR.

investment in subsidiaries
Details of the cormpany’s investment in its subsidiaries are disclosed in note 14.

Investment in associates and joint ventures
Details of the company's investment in its associates are disclosed in note 15,

Shareholders
Details of major shareholders of the company can be found in the online integrated report.

Key management personnel

Key management personnel are directors and those executives having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controling the activities of the group. No key management personnel had a material interest in any contract with any group
company during the year under review, Details of directers’ emoluments and shareholding in the company are discinsed in
notes 36 and 37 as well as in the Directors’ statutory report, The board has determined that prescribed officers in accordance
with the Companies Act are the executive and non-executive directors anly.



40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS _.» "~

40.5

Key management personnel ~~ " oo
Company key management personnel remuneration comprises

GROUP
Rmillion 2017 2016
Directors’ fees 42 3.9
Remuneration for management setvices 40.6 41.5
Retirement contributions 5.0 45
Medical aid contributions 1.4 1.2
Performance bonuses 320 285
Fringe and other benefits 0.3 0.2
Expense relating to share options granted 51.5 70.9
Total 135.0 150.7

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the Remuneration Committee with regard to the performance
of the individual and market trends.

43, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

411

41.2

41.3

Acquisition of $ Buys pharmaceutical wholesaler

The SPAR Group Ltd purchased a 60% shareholding in a pharmaceutical wholesaier effective 1 October 2017, The consideration
paid for these shares was R45.0 mullion. There is an additicnal contingent consideration of R29.9 million, calculated based on a
multiple of the profit after tax as at the end of the entity's August 2017 financial year.

This purchase was made in order 1o grow the Pharmacy at SPAR line of business, and the synergies as a result of this acquisition
will be reflected in the value of goodwill.

The group will purchase the remaining 40% shareholding between 30 September 2022 and 31 Decamber 2022 for an amount
based on the value of the remaining shareholders loan and the profit after tax for the 2022 financial year. This obligation to
purchase the remaining shareholding will be recogrised as & financial liabiity at the present value of the obligation, discounted
from the expected settlement date to the reporting date. The non-controlling interest will be recognised at the proportionate
share of the net assets of the business. An election has been made not to recognise the nen-controlling interest’s share of profits
or losses In equity, but rather as the movemnent in the fair value of the discounted financial liability to purchase the remaining
40% shareholding.

Assets acquired and habilites assumed at date of acquisition are all prowisional, as well as the contingent consideration and
financial liability, as these fair values are still in the process of being finahsed.

Purchase of property
The group has purchased property to the value of R165.0 million, which is a shopping centre in Pinetown, KwaZ ulu-Natal housing

a range of tenants from which the company will derive rental Income.

The directors are not aware of any matters or circumstances, other than the above, anising since the end of the financial year
which have or may significantly affect the financial position of the group or the results of its operations.
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